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PrefaceThe Public Accounts of Alberta are prepared in accordance with the Financial Administration Act andthe Fiscal Planning and Transparency Act. The Public Accounts consist of the annual report of theGovernment of Alberta and the annual reports of each of the 21 ministries.The annual report of the Government of Alberta contains ministers’ accountability statements, theconsolidated financial statements of the province and the Measuring Up report, which compares actualperformance results to desired results set out in the government’s strategic plan.This annual report of the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General contains the minister’saccountability statement, the financial information of the ministry and a comparison of actualperformance results to desired results set out in the ministry business plan. This ministry annualreport also includes:• the financial statements of entities making up the ministry, including the Human Rights Educationand Multiculturalism Fund, and the Victims of Crime Fund, for which the minister is responsible;• the financial statements of the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee, Estates and Trusts, forwhich the minister is responsible;• other financial information as required by the Financial Administration Act and Fiscal Planning and
Transparency Act, either as separate reports or as a part of the financial statements, to the extentthat the ministry has anything to report; and,• financial information relating to trust funds.
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Minister’s Accountability StatementThe ministry’s annual report for the year ended March 31, 2020, was prepared under my direction inaccordance with the Fiscal Planning and Transparency Act and the government’s accounting policies.All of the government’s policy decisions as at June 23, 2020 with material economic or fiscalimplications of which I am aware have been considered in the preparation of this report.
[Original Signed By]
Honourable Doug SchweitzerMinister of Justice and Solicitor General
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Message from the MinisterThroughout the past year, Justice and Solicitor General continued tofulfill its mission of preserving the safety and security of Albertans,and ensuring they have access to a fair and responsive justice system.I’m very proud of the work that my ministry has accomplished duringthe last 12 months, and I’m inspired by the strength andresourcefulness JSG has shown in the face of extraordinarilychallenging circumstances.Our ministry’s prime mandate has always been to protect publicsafety. The COVID-19 pandemic, and the necessity of preventing thespread of the virus, has created new aspects to that mission. We havetaken decisive steps to maintain physical distancing and keep COVID-19 from gaining a foothold in our province: for instance, we’veintroduced technology that allows lawyers to file some documents electronically, and judges to dealwith certain matters through teleconferencing and videoconferencing.At the same time, it is vital for us not to neglect the duty placed upon us by the Supreme Court ofCanada’s 2016 decision in R v Jordan—namely, to ensure that criminal cases are prosecuted promptlyand without unreasonable delay. While Jordan does make some allowances for unusual extenuatingcircumstances (a description that undoubtedly applies to the COVID-19 pandemic), the issue of courtdelays and backlogged cases is one that long precedes the current health crisis. Aspects of this problemcan be attributed to a lack of manpower; accordingly, we earmarked $10 million annually for four yearsto hire 50 new Crown prosecutors and support staff. We also increased the number of articlingstudents, who will assume some of the workload of more experienced Crowns, freeing them up to focuson higher-priority matters.Fighting the spread of rural crime was, and continues to be, one of my top priorities. The need foraction on this front became especially clear to me last fall, when I toured several smaller towns andheard first-hand how frustrated many rural Albertans were with the administration of justice. Asresidences in these parts of the province are so spread out, it’s a perpetual challenge for lawenforcement to arrive quickly at the locations where they’re needed. As a result, a vicious cycle occurs,with thieves feeling increasingly emboldened to prey upon rural homeowners, whose feelings ofalienation are only compounded by a justice system that they feel fails to protect them.Accordingly, my ministry took several aggressive actions to improve this situation. For instance, westrengthened our laws to increase the maximum fines and sentences awaiting criminal trespassers,and amended the Occupiers’ Liability Act so that law-abiding property owners are protected from civilliability for injuries sustained by criminal trespassers. We are expanding the roles and authorities ofmore than 400 peace officers in Fish and Wildlife, Commercial Vehicle Enforcement, and the trafficarm of Alberta Sheriffs. Operating under the umbrella of the Rural Alberta Provincial IntegratedDefence Force (or RAPID Force), this cohort of law enforcement officers will be empowered torespond quickly to calls for assistance in rural areas. We made life more difficult for thieves in otherways as well; for instance, the Scrap Metal Dealers and Recyclers Identification Act makes it harder tosell stolen material for scrap.The new police funding model we introduced will also be part of our province-wide effort to get toughon crime. Under the new model, smaller communities will begin paying for a portion of their frontlinepolicing costs. Every dollar collected under this new system will be put back into law enforcement,such as for new RCMP and civilian positions across the province. As well, the $50 million increase forAlberta Law Enforcement Response Teams over the coming years will reinforce the rule of law and theconsequences of breaking it.



Introduction

Justice and Solicitor General | Annual Report 2019–20 5

At the same time, it’s important to recognize that Justice and Solicitor General can also play a role instopping crime. Last fall, for instance, we announced a $20 million increase to expand the use of drugtreatment courts in Alberta. These courts have proven themselves to be an extraordinarily effectivetool in getting offenders to accept responsibility for their actions, and break the cycle of addictionwhich led to their criminal activity. This significant funding bump will allow the existing drugtreatment courts in Edmonton and Calgary to take on twice as many clients—as well as create newdrug treatment courts in several more locations across the province.My thanks and appreciation go out to every member of our ministry’s staff, who not only keep our day-to-day operations running smoothly and efficiently, but whose expertise and commitment enable us tokeep finding innovative new ways to serve Albertans and keep their communities safe. The next yearwill clearly pose unprecedented challenges, but together we are more than prepared to meet them.
[Original Signed By]
Honourable Doug SchweitzerMinister of Justice and Solicitor General
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Management’s Responsibility for ReportingThe Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General includes the Department of Justice and Solicitor General,the Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund, and the Victims of Crime Fund.The executives of the individual entities within the ministry have the primary responsibility andaccountability for the respective entities. Collectively, the executives ensure the ministry complieswith all relevant legislation, regulations, and policies.Ministry business plans, annual reports, performance results and the supporting managementinformation are integral to the government’s fiscal and strategic plan, annual report, quarterly reports,and other financial and performance reporting.Responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of the accompanying ministry financial information andperformance results for the ministry rests with the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General. Under thedirection of the minister, I oversee the preparation of the ministry’s annual report, including thefinancial information and performance results. The financial information and performance results, ofnecessity, include amounts that are based on estimates and judgments. The financial information isprepared using the government’s stated accounting policies, which are based on Canadian publicsector accounting standards. The performance measures are prepared in accordance with thefollowing criteria:
Reliability – information used in applying performance measure methodologies agrees with theunderlying source data for the current and prior years’ results.
Understandability – the performance measure methodologies and results are presented clearly.
Comparability – the methodologies for performance measure preparation are applied consistently forthe current and prior years’ results.
Completeness – outcomes, performance measures and related targets match those included in theministry’s Budget 2019.As deputy minister, in addition to program responsibilities, I am responsible for the ministry’sfinancial administration and reporting functions. The ministry maintains systems of financialmanagement and internal control, which give consideration to costs, benefits, and risks that aredesigned to:• provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized, executed in accordancewith prescribed legislation and regulations, and properly recorded so as to maintain accountabilityof public money;• provide information to manage and report on performance;• safeguard the assets and properties of the province under ministry administration;• provide Executive Council, The President of Treasury Board and Minister of Finance, and theMinister of Justice and Solicitor General the information needed to fulfill their responsibilities; and
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• facilitate preparation of ministry business plans and annual reports required under the Fiscal
Planning and Transparency Act.In fulfilling my responsibilities for the ministry, I have relied, as necessary, on the executives of theindividual entities within the ministry.

[Original Signed By]Frank Bosscha, QCDeputy Minister of Justice and Deputy Solicitor GeneralJune 23, 2020
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Ministry Overview

Organizational Structure

Operational Overview

Justice and Solicitor General

Alberta Crown Prosecution Service DivisionThe Alberta Crown Prosecution Service (ACPS) is responsible for the prosecution of persons chargedunder the Criminal Code, Youth Criminal Justice Act, and provincial statute offences.The ACPS also handles criminal appeals in the Court of Appeal of Alberta and the Supreme Court ofCanada on behalf of Alberta’s Attorney General. Additionally, the ACPS develops criminal law policy forthe province and supports criminal law consultation with other provinces, territories, and theGovernment of Canada.The authority to conduct prosecutions, including all of the discretionary decisions that must be madein every case, originates with the office of the Attorney General. With this role also comes the duty toremain independent. Crown prosecutors are appointed to act for the Attorney General and administerjustice at the local level. Through these appointments, the Attorney General empowers agents toperform his prosecutorial duties.
Correctional Services DivisionCorrectional Services is responsible for the effective and efficient custody and supervision of adultsand youth under correctional authority, including the facilitation of rehabilitation opportunities.Custody is reserved for adults who are remanded or serving a sentence of less than two years and foryouth who are remanded or sentenced. Community supervision includes programs such as pre-trialsupervision, probation, and alternative measures/sanctions for both adults and youth.
Justice Services DivisionJustice Services provides public-facing programs and a range of services including: facilitating court-ordered child, spousal, and partner support; recovering fines under the Criminal Code and Traffic
Safety Act; providing Albertans with compensation for injuries received in accidents involvinguninsured or unknown (hit and run) motorists; and reducing crime by taking away money and
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property acquired through illegal means. The Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee providesdecision-making support for personal and financial challenges facing Albertans, and the Office of theChief Medical Examiner provides responsive front-line death investigation and death certificationservices for sudden deaths. The ministry is party to a tri-partite agreement with the Law Society ofAlberta and Legal Aid Alberta in the delivery of legal aid to Albertans; oversight of this agreement iscarried out within this division.The Property Rights Advocate Office is a resource for Albertans and ministries that addresses systemicissues affecting property rights. In January 2020, the Farmers’ Advocate, Peter J. Dobbie, QC, wasappointed as the Property Rights Advocate. Work is underway to merge the functions of the twooffices.
Legal Services DivisionLegal Services assists the minister in providing legal advice to the Premier and Cabinet. With acomprehensive understanding of government’s legislative and regulatory frameworks, policyobjectives, and key programs, the division provides legal representation for, and legal advice to, allgovernment departments. The division supports deputy ministers and their departments in managinglegal risks and ensuring that public affairs are administered according to law. The Legislative CounselOffice within the division drafts legislation, regulations, and Orders in Council.
Ministry Support ServicesMinistry Support Services include the minister’s office, deputy minister’s office and the CorporateServices Division. Corporate Services includes branches that are critical to supporting ongoinggovernment operations such as financial services, policy, planning and coordination activities,evaluation, agency oversight, facilities and fleet management, procurement, emergency management,transformation services and official documents and appointments. These advisory and supportservices are provided to the entire ministry and Alberta courts to establish and maintain strategicpriorities and optimize operating efficiency, while ensuring division, ministry and Government ofAlberta goals are aligned. Corporate Services also oversees the ministry’s training academy forcorrectional and peace officers.
Public Security DivisionPublic Security is responsible for law enforcement, crime prevention, restorative justice, and victimservices. This mandate covers a broad portfolio of functions, such as: integrated policing initiatives;delivery of supplementary law enforcement, including court security; prisoner transport; traffic andcommercial vehicle safety enforcement; protection of officials and infrastructure; fish and wildlifeenforcement; police oversight and contract management; oversight of private investigators andsecurity guards; and, security services for government buildings, employees, the judiciary, andmembers of government. Additionally, the division is responsible for providing victims and theirfamilies with general information concerning services available to victims on how the justice systemoperates and overall oversight and administration of the Victims of Crime Act and the Canadian Victims
Bill of Rights.

Resolution and Court Administration ServicesResolution and Court Administration Services (RCAS) provides resolution and court administrationservices to Albertans with legal issues as well as court services to support the operations of Alberta’sthree courts. The division’s broad range of services includes information services, referrals to legalresources, dispute resolution, and court assistance. The division supports Albertans in family,surrogate, civil, criminal and traffic matters by facilitating fine payments, document filing, scheduling,and trials. RCAS supports the three courts by providing administrative and technical support services.



Results Analysis

Justice and Solicitor General | Annual Report 2019–20 11

RCAS implements policies, programs, and legislative and regulatory initiatives related to a number ofareas, including judicial appointment and selection, judicial compensation, and the Alberta Rules ofCourt.
Agencies, Boards and Commissions

Alberta Human Rights CommissionThe Minister of Justice and Solicitor General is responsible for the Alberta Human Rights Act (the Act),which establishes the Alberta Human Rights Commission (the Commission).Reporting to the Minister, but independent of the Government of Alberta, the Commission protectshuman rights across the province by resolving complaints made under the Act. Human rights tribunalsadjudicate complaints that cannot be resolved. The Commission works to eliminate discrimination andbarriers to full participation in society through education and community engagement. The Chief ofthe Commission and Tribunals, members of the Commission and the Director of the Commission areappointed through Orders in Council.
Alberta Review BoardThe Alberta Review Board makes or reviews dispositions concerning any accused adult or youngperson for whom a verdict of “not criminally responsible because of mental disorder” or “unfit to standtrial” is rendered, according to the provisions of the Criminal Code. The board also has theresponsibility of determining whether such a person should be subject to a detention order, or begranted either a conditional discharge or an absolute discharge. The board members are appointedthrough Orders in Council.
Criminal Injuries Review BoardThe Criminal Injuries Review Board considers requests for reviews of decisions regarding applicationsfor financial benefits for victims of crime under the Victims of Crime Act. The board may requestexperts to assist with a review and has the power to confirm, rescind, or vary decisions made by theDirector of the Victims of Crime Financial Benefits Program. The board members are appointedthrough Orders in Council.
Fatality Review BoardThe Fatality Review Board is responsible for the review of investigations under the Fatality Inquiries
Act (the Act). The board determines whether there is a need to hold a public fatality inquiry andreviews complaints with respect to misbehaviour, incompetence, or neglect of duty by medicalexaminers or the inability of medical examiners to perform their duties under the Act. The boardmembers are appointed through Orders in Council.
Judicial CouncilThe Judicial Council screens individuals to determine whether they are qualified for appointment tothe Provincial Court of Alberta. The council is granted jurisdiction to deal with complaints againstmasters, provincial court judges, and justices of the peace. The council is composed of six members,two of whom are appointed by Ministerial Orders and four who are designated under the Judicature
Act.

Law Enforcement Review BoardThe Law Enforcement Review Board hears appeals from members of the public and police officerswho have complaints regarding the actions of police officers, or who are unsatisfied with the
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disposition of their complaint by the responsible chief of police. The board is established under the
Police Act. The board also hears appeals relating to peace officer employer authorizations or peaceofficer appointments cancelled under the Peace Officer Act. The board members are appointed throughOrders in Council.
Notaries Public Advisory CommitteeThe Notaries Public Advisory Committee advises the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General onappointments of lay notaries public. The committee consists of a member of the Law Society ofAlberta, a member of the community, and a member of the ministry (who acts as the secretary). All areappointed by Ministerial Orders under the Government Organization Act.
Provincial Court Nominating CommitteeThe Provincial Court Nominating Committee makes recommendations to the Minister of Justice andSolicitor General on the appointment of individuals to the Provincial Court of Alberta. The committeeis composed of 11 members, eight of whom are appointed by Ministerial Orders and includerepresentatives from the legal profession and members of the public. The remaining three committeemembers are the Chief Judge of the Provincial Court of Alberta, the President of the Law Society ofAlberta, and the President of the Canadian Bar Association (Alberta Branch) or their representatives.By way of convention, the minister uses this committee’s recommendations in makingrecommendations to Cabinet for the appointment of new judges.
Rules of Court CommitteeThe Rules of Court Committee makes recommendations to the Minister of Justice and Solicitor Generalon amendments to the Rules of Court made under the Judicature Act. The committee consists of sixmembers: the Chief Justice of Alberta or designate; the Chief Justice of the Court of Queen’s Bench ordesignate; the Chief Judge of the Provincial Court of Alberta or designate; two members appointed onrecommendation of the Law Society of Alberta; and one member appointed at the discretion of theminister.
Victims of Crime Programs CommitteeThe Victims of Crime Programs Committee makes recommendations on grant applications andprovides information on programs and services to assist victims of crime. The committee members areappointed by Ministerial Orders.
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Key Highlights in the Past YearOver the past year, the ministry has focused on addressing Albertans’ concerns about crime across theprovince. In fall 2019, the ministry announced the creation of the Rural Alberta Provincial IntegratedDefence Force (RAPID-Force), which will see the integration of peace officers to respond to a widerrange of calls and assist the RCMP and other police services in response to rural crime. The ministryhas worked to develop a new police -funding model, which will be more equitable acrossmunicipalities and will enable additional funding to be provided for front-line policing resources. Theministry is also increasing the budget for the Alberta Law Enforcement Response Teams (ALERT) byup to $50 million over the next four years, including $3 million in 2019-20, to address organized andserious crime, including gang violence, drug trafficking, child pornography, stalking and domesticviolence.This past year, the ministry developed several key pieces of legislation to protect the interests of law-abiding Albertans. In fall 2019, the government proclaimed the Scrap Metal Dealers and Recyclers
Identification Act to deter metal theft by making it more difficult for criminals to monetize stolenmaterial by selling it for scrap. On December 5, 2019, the Trespass Statutes (Protecting Law-abiding
Property Owners) Amendment Act came into force to address liability concerns of property ownersfaced with trespassers who may be injured while committing or attempting to commit a criminaloffence. The ministry also engaged with stakeholders to develop the Protecting Survivors of Human
Trafficking Act, which protects vulnerable Albertans at-risk of being trafficked and empower survivorsto get away from physically, emotionally and financially damaging abuse.The government has committed to invest up to $20 million over four years to expand drug treatmentcourts to five additional sites across the province. In March 2020, it was announced that Lethbridgewould be the first location for a drug treatment court outside of Edmonton and Calgary. Furtherexpanding these courts to other locations will help keep more Albertans safe by breaking the cycle ofaddiction-related crime.The ministry began a review of its victim service model, including service delivery, funding, and victimcompensation to ensure the system is meeting the needs of victims in a way that is effective andfinancially sustainable. A Restitution Recoveries Program is being developed to help victims collectoutstanding payments on restitution orders by giving government the authority to use enforcementmeasures, such as garnishing wages or seizing and selling property, as needed, against offenders. Thisprogram will assist victims who would otherwise have to navigate the legal system and attempt tocollect court-ordered restitution at their own effort and expense.The ministry is committed to providing high quality, accessible, citizen-focused services. Budget 2019allocated $27 million in capital funding over four years for the Justice Digital Program to provideAlbertans with more timely and accessible justice system supports and services through technologyenhancements. In 2019-20, these included online enhancements to enable Albertans to accessinformation and pay outstanding fines, and resolve their traffic tickets. In March 2020, in response tothe COVID-19 pandemic, a number of additional Justice Digital initiatives were accelerated includingthe introduction of virtual court proceedings and remote filing services.
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Discussion and Analysis of ResultsThe Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General is committed to the ongoing review of programs andservices to ensure that the best possible outcomes are being achieved for Albertans. As part of itsongoing review, the ministry is committed to reducing red tape to make life easier for hard-workingAlbertans and businesses. This includes reducing regulatory burden and unnecessary processes toencourage economic growth and job creation; and make Alberta one of the freest and fastest movingeconomies in the world.To this end, over the past year Justice and Solicitor General set out to:• identify regulatory requirements in legislation, regulations, policy and forms within the ministryand associated Agencies, Boards and Commissions;• review the identified requirements and eliminate those that are not necessary for fiscalaccountability or consumer, environmental, health and safety protections; and• reduce regulatory burden by one third by the end of the 2022-23 fiscal year (five percentreduction in 2019-20), followed by no net increase in regulatory requirements through a flexibleone in/one out approach.A Red Tape Reduction Plan was created and a baseline count of all Justice and Solicitor Generallegislation, regulations, policies, forms and guidelines was developed. These were reviewed forduplication of forms or forms that add unnecessary administrative burdens and the process wascompleted with help from both the public and stakeholders.While any potential reductions may not have an immediate impact on job creation, the regulatoryimprovements and reductions will have a positive impact on Albertans by reducing the number ofregulatory or administrative requirements they need to complete to interact with government orobtain services. Justice and Solicitor General will continue to review programs and services to ensurewe continue to make life easier for Albertans as they navigate Alberta’s justice system.
Outcome One: Albertans are safe and protectedJustice and Solicitor General continues to work with justice system partners to ensure Albertans feelsafe and protected in their communities. Through collaboration and investment of additionalresources, such as focused joint efforts on addressing rural crime, police funding changes andmodernizing legislation, the ministry has been working to better deter and respond to crime. Theseefforts support Albertans in the fight against addiction, protect at-risk individuals from beingtrafficked, and strengthen the protection of the rights of law-abiding property owners. Themultifaceted approaches promote individual and community safety and reflect the ministry’scommitment to crack down on crime by ensuring police, prosecutors and peace officers have the righttools and resources to protect Albertans.
Key Objectives

1.1 Examine police funding to ensure it is equitable.The new police funding model addresses inequity across communities and helps direct neededresources to policing and justice priorities in rural Alberta. For some time, municipal stakeholdershave been dissatisfied with the structure of police funding in Alberta and have been pressinggovernment to develop a model to distribute the costs of local policing in an equitable, transparent
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and sustainable manner. As a result, this past year theministry worked with municipalities to implement a newpolice funding model to ensure it is equitable,transparent and sustainable. Under the former Police Act,policing was provided at no direct cost to all ruralmunicipalities in Alberta. This included municipaldistricts, counties, and Métis settlements, regardless ofpopulation, as well as towns, villages, and summervillages with populations of 5,000 or less, while othermunicipalities with populations over 5,000 paid forpolicing.The Government of Alberta’s new police funding modelconstitutes an approximate increase in rural policefunding of more than $286 million over five years. Underthe cost-sharing terms in the Provincial Police ServiceAgreement (PPSA) for RCMP, Alberta pays 70 percent of policing costs and the federal governmentpays the remaining 30 percent. Revenue collected through the new model will be reinvested intopolicing, leading to an increase in the number of RCMP officers and civilian positions throughout theprovince. This investment places priority on adding uniformed patrol officers in rural RCMPdetachments and will also add members to specialized RCMP units that dismantle organized crime,drug trafficking, as well as investigating auto and scrap metal theft. New civilian positions will assistwith administrative tasks and investigative support to improve response times and help ensureofficers have the support network they need to protect Albertans by spending more time in theircommunities.As part of the next steps, an advisory board is being created with representatives from the RuralMunicipalities of Alberta, the Alberta Urban Municipalities Association, and the Alberta Association ofPolice Governance. The establishment of a new Alberta Police Advisory Board will give small and ruralcommunities policed by the RCMP a forum to discuss policing priorities with the RCMP, and in turn,inform the Justice and Solicitor General and RCMP joint Business Plan.Policing services to Indigenous communities are funded under a federal program called the FirstNations Policing Program (FNPP) in partnership with Alberta. This program provides Indigenouscommunities with the option of either a self-administered police service or dedicated RCMP policing.Justice and Solicitor General provided over $12 million in 2019-20 for Indigenous policing. Three self-administered Indigenous police services operate in Alberta, providing policing services to sevenIndigenous communities. As well, the program provides funding for an additional 57 RCMP membersto deliver an enhanced level of service to 21 Alberta Indigenous communities. In 2019-20, the ministryprovided an additional $1 million for crime prevention and school resource officers for the BloodTribe Police Service, Tsuut’ina Nation Police Service and Lakeshore Regional Police Service. Theministry continues to negotiate with Public Safety Canada for additional police resources, andcontinues discussions on multi-year agreements in an effort to enhance policing services in Alberta’sIndigenous communities.Justice and Solicitor General provides a number of key law enforcement oversight functions, includingaudits of police services, authorized employers of peace officers, and businesses licensed under theSecurity Services and Investigators Program to ensure they are compliant with relevant standards,legislation, regulations and policies. These audits provide those agencies with a report that highlightsany deficiencies as well as opportunities for improvement based on best industry practices. In 2019-20, all programs audited were either found to be compliant or became compliant upon receipt of theiraudit report. Three police services were audited, the Peace Officer Program conducted 53 audits and15 licensed security businesses were audited for compliance during 2019-20.

Quick Fact
In 2019 there were:
 11 police services in Alberta.
 318 Authorized Employers of

Peace Officers.
 4,564 peace officers (Alberta and

Community).
 651 business licenses and 25,623

Individual licenses provided
through the Security Services and
Investigators Program.
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The Alberta Serious Incident Response Team (ASIRT) is a government agency whose mandate is toindependently and objectively investigate incidents involving Alberta’s police that have resulted inserious injury or death to any person, as well as sensitive allegations of police misconduct. Theministry’s Director of Law Enforcement is the only individual who can assign ASIRT investigations. In2019-20, 75 ASIRT files were opened, which included a record-high 68 investigations. Of those 75 files,ASIRT investigated incidents that had resulted in eleven fatalities and serious injury to another 26individuals. In 2019, as a result of continuing investigations, eight officers or former police officerswere charged with criminal offences arising out of both on- and off-duty conduct.In March 2019, Alberta signed a funding agreement to receive two years of federal funds from the five-year Gun and Gang Violence Action Fund. Overall, Alberta has been allotted $29.9 million from thefund spanning years 2018 to 2023. Federal funding is provided to provincial and territorialgovernments to support police services and other organizations to enhance their efforts to prevent,disrupt and combat gun and gang violence, and to increase awareness and understanding of relatedissues.REACH Edmonton and the Calgary Centre for Newcomers each received a $500,000 grant for youthgang prevention programs and $170,000 was provided to the Kainai Transition Centre Society tosupport Indigenous individuals post-incarceration or treatment, and for correctional gang exitprograms.Justice and Solicitor General continued to supportcommunity crime prevention through the dissemination ofbest practices and funding opportunities, such asRestorative Justice and Crime Prevention Grants. Fundingwas also provided to community-based Crime PreventionAssociations including Citizens on Patrol, Rural CrimeWatch, and the Alberta Community Crime PreventionAssociation, which provide a vital link between police andcommunity members in crime prevention, particularly inrural Alberta. Through formal agreements, these agenciesprovide support services to police in terms of informationdissemination and localized patrolling.Applications for Civil Forfeiture Grants are accepted onceevery two years. These grants are for carrying outevidence-based, upstream crime prevention and victimservices programs, dealing with issues that are relevant tothe specific community they serve, such as prevention ofjustice system involvement for at-risk individuals andgroups, such as youth, and Indigenous communities.
1.2 Strengthen Alberta’s rural crime response capability and address drivers of crime

through partnership with policing and community stakeholders.Justice and Solicitor General is implementing focused and collaborative rural crime initiatives toensure the justice system protects Albertans and their property. In fall 2019, the minister embarkedon a rural crime tour to meet with communities and their citizens to hear the concerns of Albertansregarding rural crime. A rural crime survey was also launched to gather Albertans’ feedback. Inresponse, a rural crime plan has been developed that builds on earlier commitments and includes:• the integration of Alberta peace officers to respond to a wider range of calls and to assist the RCMPand other police services in response to rural crime beginning in fall 2020;

Quick Fact
In 2019-20 grants were provided to
help support crime prevention:

 $656,044 in Alberta Community
Restorative Justice Grants were
provided to 17 community-based
agencies.

 $120,000 in Community Crime
Prevention grants were provided
to provincial Crime Prevention
Associations.

 In 2018-19, $2.5 million in Civil
Forfeiture Grants were approved
to be paid over 2 years to 19
agencies. In    2019-20, the first
payment of $1.3 million was
awarded.
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• increasing the budget for the Alberta Law Enforcement Response Teams (ALERT) by up to $50million over the next four years to address organized and serious crime, including gang violence,drug trafficking, child pornography, stalking, and domestic violence;• hiring 50 new Crown prosecutors and support staff to enhance the functionality of the criminaljustice system beginning in 2020-21;• proclaiming the Scrap Metal Dealers and Recyclers Identification Act to deter metal theft by makingit more difficult for criminals to monetize stolen material by selling it for scrap;• investing up to $20 million over four years to expand drug treatment courts to five additional sitesacross the province.In November 2019, the ministry announced the creation of the Rural Alberta Provincial IntegratedDefence Force – RAPID Force – which will expand the roles and authorities of 400 peace officers fromthe Fish and Wildlife Enforcement Branch and Sheriff Highway Patrol to respond to crimes in ruralareas. The changes will allow these officers to respond to a wider range of calls and to assist the RCMPand other police services in some emergencies. RAPID Force will be phased-in starting in fall 2020.Also in November 2019, the Scrap Metal Dealers and Recyclers Identification Act was proclaimed andwork is underway to develop the accompanying regulations for implementation in 2020.Project Lock Up launched in February 2019 to reduce property crime at rural residences that havebeen targeted multiple times. Law enforcement partners visited targeted residences in-person toprovide owners with tips on protecting their property, including using a new transparent marker toidentify their property so it can be returned in the event it is stolen. As of March 31, 2020, 24 out of the35 properties that were visited through Project Lock Up had not been subsequently broken into.Alberta RCMP have provided patrol briefings and Crime Map access to Rural Crime Watch and Citizenson Patrol, two community crime prevention organizations, to help be the eyes and ears of police incrime-heavy areas.Alberta is co-leading a new pan-Canadian Working Group on Rural Crime. This working group,established at the end of 2019-20, will examine potential criminal law reform to deter the targeting ofvulnerable rural communities, ensure enhanced police response times and other enforcementinitiatives, and develop a national strategy on rural crime.The Alberta Law Enforcement Response Teams (ALERT) andits sub-units deal with and investigate issues important toAlbertans, such as child pornography, gang violence, drugtrafficking, stalking and domestic violence. The ministry’s2019-20 budget included a commitment of additional fundingfor ALERT of up to $50 million over the next four years. Thisfunding is in addition to its current annual grant funding of$29.1 million.The ALERT Board of Directors has developed a four-year planto utilize the additional funding contributions. This includesdoubling the size of the Internet Child Exploitation (ICE) teamand creating a new specialized unit based out of Edmonton andCalgary to help communities experiencing sudden or severeincreases in problems related to methamphetamine and opioiduse, such as a spike in overdoses or drug-related crime. ALERTis adding positions to regional organized crime units around the province to expand its geographicreach in rural areas. The Sheriffs Investigative Support Unit was seconded to the Alberta LawEnforcement Response Teams on April 1, 2020. The Sheriffs Investigative Support Unit consists ofcovert surveillance teams who provide investigative surveillance support to both government andpolice agencies, for major and organized crime investigations within Alberta. For further details aboutthese priorities or for more information about ALERT, please visit their website: https://alert-ab.ca.

Quick Fact
Breakdown of up to $50 million
in additional ALERT funding:

 $ 3 million in 2019-20
 $11.8 million in 2020-21
 $11.8 million in 2021-22
 $18.3 million in 2022-23
 The remaining $5.1 million

has been dedicated to the
Integrated Threat and Risk
Assessment Centre (ITRAC).
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The Safer Communities and Neighbourhoods Unit (SCAN)improves community safety by using civil legislation to targetresidential and commercial properties where specified illegalactivity is occurring. This activity includes drug consumption,drug trafficking, gangs, and the exploitation of individuals for thepurpose of prostitution. The Safer Communities and
Neighbourhoods Act holds property owners accountable forillegal activity taking place on their property. SCAN investigatorsalso support property owners by assisting them in removingproblem tenants where specified illegal activity is occurring. Ifinformal efforts are unsuccessful, SCAN can apply to the Court ofQueen’s Bench for a Community Safety Order that calls for the property owner to meet a number ofconditions, or for the property to be closed for up to 90 days. SCAN is a resource for communitiesacross Alberta and has investigated more than 5,850 complaints since the inception of the program inOctober of 2008. During this same time, 83 Community Safety Orders have been executed in theprovince. The Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Branch (CVEB) helps tokeep Alberta’s highways safe by monitoring the weight andmechanical fitness of commercial vehicles, as well as the fitnessof drivers of commercial vehicles. Commercial VehicleEnforcement is the lead agency in Alberta for the CommercialVehicle Safety Alliance, certifying officers to conduct NorthAmerican Standard Inspections to achieve uniformity,compatibility and reciprocity of inspections and enforcement bycertified inspectors. In 2019-20, approximately 560 wheel, tire,rim and hub defects were detected by the CVEB’s thermalimaging technology. The detection of these types of defectsenhances the safety of everyone traveling Alberta’s highways. InOctober 2019, to support the ministry’s commitment to trafficsafety, the CVEB joined the Sheriffs Branch and was integratedwith Sheriff Traffic Operations to form a new provincialintegrated traffic enforcement model. This model has since been rebranded as Sheriff Highway Patrol.The new model will further enhance public safety on provincial highways, increase governmentefficiency, and as provide the operational foundation for the full implementation of RAPID Force.The Fish and Wildlife Enforcement Branch’s mission is to conserveand protect the province’s wildlife, fisheries and public lands onbehalf of Albertans. Fish and wildlife officers deliver conservationlaw enforcement services through education, prevention andenforcement programs. They are responsible for protection of lifeand property by delivering prevention, mitigation andcompensation programs to address conflict between humans andwildlife.Justice and Solicitor General continued to work to combat cycles ofcrime and addiction in rural communities through the DrugTreatment Courts (DTC), an intensive court-supervised drugtreatment program. Participants are supported in overcoming drugdependence, addressing criminal behaviour and reintegrating intothe community. The capacity of existing Calgary and Edmonton programs has been increased for2020-23, and creation of new DTCs in other communities is being explored. Two new DTCs will becreated in new communities by the end of 2020, with an additional three sites becoming operationalby the end of 2021.

Quick Fact
In the 2019 calendar year,
SCAN executed ten
Community Safety Orders,
issued 125 warning letters,
and worked on 872
investigative files.

Quick Fact
In 2019-20, Commercial
Vehicle Enforcement officers
inspected 25,847 commercial
vehicles and drivers. CVEB did
a Cost Benefit Analysis and
determined a measureable
safety benefit to the public of
approximately $3,066 per
inspection or $79.25 million
overall.

Quick Fact
During 2019-20, Fish and
Wildlife Enforcement
received 17,915 calls
through the Report-A-
Poacher hotline and
recorded 6,343 contacts with
the public. They also issued
over 8,000 enforcement
actions.
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The Office of the Chief Medical Examiner (OCME) has been working with the Office of the Chief MedicalOfficer of Health (OCMOH) and the Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC) on a detailed national casefile review of alcohol-and drug-related deaths in order to inform programs, policies and best practiceswith a focus on preventing future deaths. This is a research project amongst the Canadian ChiefCoroners and Chief Medical Examiners, PHAC and provincial/territorial public health offices similar toOCMOH in Alberta. OCME has worked in partnership with Alberta Health and PHAC by ensuringrelevant data and information is shared for surveillance and prevention purposes. Alberta Health hasbeen using the data from OCME to develop their quarterly reporting on opioid and substance misuse.This work feeds into the work of the Minister’s Opioid Emergency Response Commission that is beingled by the Ministry of Health through the OCMOH.The ministry is also working with the federal government on adrug-impaired driving project to enhance public safety onroadways in Alberta. The overarching objective of the project isto equip law enforcement with the training, tools and technologynecessary to enforce new and existing drug-impaired drivinglegislation and to deter drug-impaired driving through research,public awareness and the development of evidence-basedpolicies. Public Safety Canada has implemented a multi-yearcontribution agreement with each province and territory tosupport a strengthened drug-impaired driving regime in Canada.The new funding (over five years) will go towards increasingStandardized Field Sobriety Testing (SFST) and refresher SFSTtraining; increasing Drug Recognition Expert certification;enhancing law enforcement trainer and data collection capacity;and purchasing approved drug screening equipment.Justice and Solicitor General continued to lead specialized policing initiatives to address drivers ofcrime and ensure a safer Alberta. The Family Violence Police Advisory Committee provides a forum foraddressing emerging family violence issues along with organizing training for police and other justicesystem stakeholders. In 2019-20, approximately 170 individuals received family violence training.The Mental Health Police Advisory Committee continued to work collaboratively to improve andenhance both police and health frontline response and service delivery to community members withmental illness. The Sexual Violence Police Advisory Committee collaborates with police services, othergovernment partners, Alberta Health Services and community based victim serving agencies toidentify service gaps in the system, improve supports to victims and develop a consistent lawenforcement response to victims of sexual violence. The Emerging Substances Police AdvisoryCommittee collaborates with police services, other law enforcement agencies such as Canadian BorderSecurity Agency, Correctional Service Canada and other government partners to explore challenges asthey relate to the enforcement aspects of emerging substances.In 2019-20, body scanners were implemented at four additionalcorrectional centres (Fort Saskatchewan Correctional Centre,Lethbridge Correctional Centre, Calgary Correctional Centre andPeace River Correctional Centre). Body scanners, similar to those inairports, are used to combat the introduction of drugs, weapons, andother contraband (e.g., cell phones, lighters, etc.) into correctionalfacilities in an effort to protect staff and inmates. All inmates admittedto the centre are scanned, including new admissions, transfers fromother correctional centres, and returns from court or escorted leaves.The body scanner is used in conjunction with other detectionmethods previously in place at each centre and uses ultra-lowradiation (x-ray system) to detect contraband hidden on or inside aperson. Overall, six of the ministry’s eight adult correctional facilities

Quick Fact
Of the 95,667 body
scans that were
performed at adult
correctional centres in
Alberta in 2019-20,
4,129 detected
suspected contraband
items.

Quick Fact
As part of the drug-impaired
driving project, in 2019-20:

 66 Standardized Field
Sobriety Testing courses
were conducted, with 681
police officers being
trained.

 9 Drug Recognition Expert
courses were conducted,
resulting in the certification
of 84 officers.
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now have body scanning technology in place, with the seventh scanner coming online early next fiscalyear. A fulsome evaluation is being conducted to assess the effectiveness of the body scanners withinthe Correctional Services Division. The original implementation at the Edmonton Remand Centre hasshown many benefits, including a safer environment for both staff and inmates. Any financial savingsor cost avoidance realized through the implementation of the body scanners will also be reflected inthe evaluation, which will be completed in 2020-21.To effectively balance public safety concerns with the rights of offenders to access conditional release,the Government of Alberta has committed to creating an Alberta Parole Board for offenders serving asentence of less than two years, rather than relying on the Parole Board of Canada. This change willcreate greater continuity of offender supervision and improve community safety, better protectingAlbertans. Planning is currently underway with the goal to operationalize the Alberta Parole Board inearly 2021.
1.3 Collaborate with partners to address the issue of human trafficking.The Government of Alberta is committed to protecting the human rights and dignity of every Albertan,including victims and survivors of the dehumanizing and predatory crime of human trafficking.Human trafficking is a serious crime that takes the forms of sexual exploitation, forced labourtrafficking, and trafficking in human organs or tissues. Traffickers exploit people of all ages, ethnicitiesand genders, forcing their victims to provide labour or sexual services against their will and usingthreats of violence to trap them in a cycle of exploitation. Prevention, prosecution and protectionthrough partnership is paramount to tackling issues of human trafficking in Alberta. Alberta has anine-point provincial action plan to address human trafficking. Two main components of the planinclude passing legislation to protect survivors of human trafficking and creating a Human TraffickingTask Force.In 2019-20, the ministry engaged with stakeholders tointroduce a bill that provides new measures to help addresshuman trafficking and better protect survivors in Alberta.Feedback recorded during an engagement session and inputfrom written submissions was considered in drafting the
Protecting Survivors of Human Trafficking Act. This newlegislation will allow government to create:• an annual day (February 22) to bring awareness to theissue of human trafficking;• a standard definition of human trafficking and a standard definition of sexual exploitation;• a statutory tort allowing victims of trafficking to sue their traffickers; and• a statutory remedy allowing victims to secure a protection order from their traffickers and awarrant permitting entry by police officers.A Human Trafficking Task Force has been appointed to provide recommendations on how to bestimplement Alberta’s action plan to combat human trafficking. This Task Force will provide guidanceand recommendations on supports for survivors, enhance collaboration among all stakeholders andorganizations that work with survivors of human trafficking in order to prevent, protect and ensuretheir safety, and engage experts to identify what actions are needed to bring transformational andsustainable change. The Task Force has been stood up for a one-year period, with the possibility ofextending their tenure if necessary. The Chair will be providing quarterly reports of the Task Force’sprogress to the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General.

Quick Fact
An engagement session on human
trafficking was held August 29,
2019. It was attended by 70
participants representing 50
organizations, and 50 Government
of Alberta staff from five ministries.
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1.4 Review existing legislation and introduce new legislation to protect Albertans’ property
rightsThe government is committed to protecting Albertans’ right to own and enjoy property. On December5, 2019, the Trespass Statutes (Protecting Law-abiding Property Owners) Amendment Act came intoforce to address liability concerns of property owners faced with trespassers who may be injuredwhile committing or attempting to commit a criminal offence. Building on changes that occurred in2019, work will continue to be done to assess further legislative and regulatory changes.

Performance Measure 1.a: Percentage of probation officers trained in the effective intervention
techniques derived from evidence-based principles

Prior Years’ Results
Current
Result

2019-20
Target2015-16

Result
2016-17

Result
2017-18

Result
2018-19

ResultNotAvailable* 18% 48% 66% 95% 95%*Prior years’ results were calculated based on total number of people who received training divided by the totalnumber of FTEs as of March 31 that year. For 2019-20, the methodology was changed to determine actual trainingneeds. The calculation is thus based on the number of staff requiring training rather than the number of staffreceiving training.In 2019-20, 127 probation officers were trained in the use of Effective Practices in CommunitySupervision (EPICS). Out of a total of 364 probation officers, 18 have been identified as still requiringtraining. This meets the target of having 95 percent of officers trained.The fundamental components of EPICS intervention techniques have been derived from evidence-based principles, which are offender risk, need and responsivity (RNR). As suggested by its name, thisapproach is based on three principles:• the risk principle, which asserts that criminal behaviour can be reliably predicted and thattreatment should focus on higher-risk offenders;• the need principle, which highlights the importance of criminogenic needs in the design anddelivery of treatment; and,• the responsivity principle, which describes how the treatment should be provided.EPICS includes the principles of RNR and eight core correctional practices, which include relationshipskills, anti-criminal modeling, structured learning, cognitive restructuring, problem- solving, effectivereinforcement, effective disapproval, and use of authority.A four-day training program teaches probation officers how to apply the principles of the Risk-Need-Responsivity model to their work with offenders, and to identify and change offender thought patternsthat lead to criminal behaviour. In addition to training, EPICS implementation is further supported andwill be effectively sustained through ongoing skill development and responsive changes to policy andsupervision standards. Also ongoing, supervision and coaching continue to focus on the probationofficer’s interview with the client serving as both a skill development and quality assurance practice.These efforts will lead to a shift in focus and resources away from low-risk offenders to moderate-andhigh-risk sentenced community offenders.
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The University of Cincinnati Corrections Institute (UCCI) was contracted to deliver the initial EPICStraining. A total of ten Probation Officers and Senior Probation Officers have since become certifiedEPICS trainers, allowing community corrections to deliver the training internally. Also beginning2020-21, EPICS training will form part of the Community Corrections and Release Programs InductionTraining curriculum.
Performance Indicator 1.b: Violent and property crime rates per 100,000 population

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Violent Crime RateAlberta 1,266 1,316 1,282 1,311 1,319Canada 1,044 1,070 1,076 1,113 1,144
Property Crime RateAlberta 4,376 5,247 5,335 5,530 5,435Canada 3,100 3,231 3,239 3,266 3,339Crime rate measures the volume of crime, including all Criminal Code violations (except trafficinfractions) relative to population size. Violent crime involves offences that deal with the applicationor threat of force to a person. These include homicide, attempted murder and various forms of sexualand non-sexual assault, robbery and abduction. Property crime includes incidents involving unlawfulacts with the intent of gaining property, but does not involve the use or threat of violence against anindividual. Theft, breaking and entering, fraud and possession of stolen goods are examples ofproperty crimes. Crime rates are expressed as the number of crimes per 100,000 people.In 2018, Alberta’s violent crime rate was 1,319, as compared to Canada’s rate of 1,144, an increase ofone percent from the previous year. A further breakdown shows a decrease in homicide rates (33percent), and an increase in major assaults (one percent), robberies (five percent) and sexual assaults(13 percent). In the same year, Alberta’s property crime rate was 5,435, as compared to Canada’s rateof 3,339. This is a decrease of two percent from the previous year and could be attributable to a sevenpercent decrease in motor vehicle theft.Given the government’s commitment to address rural crime, it is helpful to examine Alberta’s urbanand rural crime rate trends. Between 2009 and 2017 (the most recent urban-rural data breakdownavailable from Statistics Canada), the property crime rate remained stable (no percentage change) inurban Alberta but increased in rural Alberta by 13 percent. More specifically, between 2016 and 2017,the urban property crime rate increased three percent, while the rural property crime rate increasedsix percent. Overall, Alberta’s violent crime rate decreased from 2009 to 2017 with rural violent crimerates down 24 percent and urban violent crime rates down 11 percent. While the violent crime ratedecreased by 11 percent in rural Alberta between 2016 and 2017, it increased by six percent in urbanAlberta over the same time-period.There are many factors that influence police-reported crime statistics, including the fact that anincident must first come to the attention of police and the differences between individual policeservices, such as available resources or departmental priorities, policies and procedures. Morebroadly, social and economic factors can influence the volume of crime at a national, regional,municipal or neighbourhood level. In particular, crime rates can be affected by changes in agedemographics, economic conditions, neighbourhood characteristics, the emergence of newtechnologies, or by Canadians’ attitudes toward crime and risky behaviour.
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Performance Indicator 1.c: Violent and non-violent Crime Severity Index (CSI)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Violent Crime Severity IndexAlberta 87 99 93 99 97Canada 71 75 77 81 82
Non-violent Crime Severity
IndexAlberta 88 106 110 117 117Canada 65 68 70 71 72

The Crime Severity Index (CSI) measures both the volume and severity of crime, and includes all
Criminal Code and other federal statute violations. Violent crime includes all police-report violentviolations, which deal with the application or threat of force to a person. Non-violent crime involves allpolice reported property violations, other Criminal Code violations, Criminal Code traffic violations,and other federal statute violations. To determine the severity of a crime, all crimes are assigned aweight based on actual sentences handed down by the courts in all provinces and territories. Moreserious crimes are assigned higher weights, while less serious crimes are assigned lower weights. As aresult, more serious offences have a greater impact on changes in the index.In 2018, Alberta’s violent CSI was 97, while the Canadian CSI was 82. In the same year, Alberta’s non-violent CSI was 117, while the Canadian CSI was 72. Between 2017 and 2018, seven of Canada’s 13provinces and territories reported increases in their CSI, Alberta placing eighth with no change. Thiswas attributable to an increase in fraud, offset by a decrease in homicide. The overall volume andseverity of non-violent CSI was the same as the previous year, due to increase in fraud and shopliftingof $5,000 or under offset by a decrease in theft of $5,000 or under (non-shoplifting), possession ofstolen property and motor vehicle theft.The most recent urban-rural data breakdown (2017) for CSI shows the violent CSI decreased in bothurban and rural Alberta between 2009 and 2017, by 11 percent and two percent respectively. Bothareas experienced increases in non-violent CSI over the same time-period, up six percent in urban and23 percent in rural Alberta.
Performance Indicator 1.d: Drug Treatment Court recidivism rates

Study Period ResultEdmonton John Howard Society* 2007-2018 70.0%Calgary Drug Treatment Court Society 2010-15 69.4%
*Result is a roll up of two separate studiesThis indicator was included in the 2019-23 Business Plan for the first time. The indicator reports thepercentage of graduates reported by the program to have had no new criminal convictions post-graduation. The indicator demonstrates the effectiveness of the Drug Treatment Court and helpsinform the policy or program intervention within the Drug Treatment Courts. As reported by theEdmonton John Howard Society, since the Edmonton Drug Treatment Court (EDTC) began in 2005, 70percent of program graduates have had no new criminal convictions. As reported by the Calgary DrugTreatment Court Society, from 2010 to 2015, 69.4 percent of Calgary Drug Treatment Court (CDTC)participants had no new criminal convictions.
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Two separate evaluation studies were completed for EDTC. A review of 98 graduates from 2007-2015indicated that approximately 70 percent had no new convictions. In 2013, the EDTC programredirected the focus to primarily high risk and high needs participants and an analysis for the 2014 to2018 time-period was completed using data obtained from the Justice Online Information Network(JOIN) system. The study found that out of the 38 graduates from EDTC, 28 (74 percent) had no newconvictions post-graduation. The result for this indicator (70 percent) is reported by the EdmontonJohn Howard Society based on an approximate average of the two studies.Data for the CDTC was reported by the Calgary Drug Treatment Court Society. The study included 36CDTC participants who graduated from the program during a five-year period between April 1, 2010and March 31, 2015. Post-graduation crime involvement was tracked to March 31, 2015. Informationwas presented regarding graduates’ age and gender, the time free from convictions followinggraduation, and the number and types of convictions incurred before and after graduation from theprogram. Data for this study was obtained from the Justice Online Information Network (JOIN) system.The percentage was calculated as the number of graduates reported by the program to have had nonew criminal convictions (25) divided by the total number of graduates (36).The government has committed an additional $20 million over four years to expand the use of DrugTreatment Courts, doubling the number of individuals who could participate in Calgary andEdmonton, as well as increasing accessibility to Albertans in rural areas. The funding for futureevaluations has been built into the new contracts established with Drug Treatment Court sites whilethe ministry is developing consistent provincial standards to inform a future DTC performanceindicator. The information from both Edmonton and Calgary Drug Treatment Courts is helping toinform the government’s commitment to expand and increase the accessibility of Drug TreatmentCourts in the next few years and to inform the policy and program intervention at Drug TreatmentCourt.
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Outcome Two: Alberta’s justice system is fair and effectiveThe ministry is committed to ensuring the justice system is fairer, faster, more responsive and moreeffective. Annual reporting on justice statistics will help Albertans understand how well the criminaljustice system is functioning and hold the ministry accountable for delivering effective and efficientservices. By hiring additional Crown prosecutors and support staff, and ensuring those resources areallocated where they are most needed in the province, the ministry will be better able to deal withcriminal matters in a timely and appropriate manner. Further, communication between police andCrown prosecutors was enhanced in a pre-charge approval pilot project. The pilot promotes aneffective and sustainable use of court resources by enabling police and prosecutors to focus on viablematters. The ministry has implemented process improvements in several of its programs, includingthe guardianship and trusteeship application processes, the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner casemanagement process, and the first appearance Justice of the Peace bail process to make them moreefficient and effective. Additionally, the ministry has been working on behalf of the government tomake legislative changes and democratic reforms to strengthen government accountability toAlbertans.
Key Objectives

2.1 Enhance criminal justice system reporting to indicate how the system is functioning.The proposed introduction of a Public’s Right to Know Act is a government commitment to annuallyreport on justice statistics. For government to understand where there are issues in the system andwhere corrections are required, key statistics must be tracked. Based on data trends, ministry officialswill be better informed to make decisions that enhance the responsiveness of justice system functions,thereby creating a more effective system overall. In addition, publicly reporting on key statistics willhelp Albertans better understand how the criminal justice system functions.In 2019-20, work was undertaken within the ministry to reviewother jurisdictions’ approaches and to identify potential statisticsfor public reporting. Legislation will be proposed to help ensurethe publication of key statistics continues into the future. Overthe coming year, the ministry will continue to confirm, collect andanalyze data, develop a format for reporting, and report on datapublicly and annually in 2020-21 and beyond.Public’s Right to Know Act also supports mitigation of risksrelated to lack of integration and coordination of data, as this work will help the justice system tobetter identify and respond to emerging and complex issues.
2.2 Streamline processes to increase sustainability and ensure effective use of resources.The Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee (OPGT) has been leading a review of the Adult
Guardianship and Trusteeship (AGT) Regulations and the Adult Guardianship and Trusteeship
(Ministerial) Regulations to standardize processes and reduce the amount of duplicate information andnumber of forms required to apply to become a guardian or trustee. These revisions, which areanticipated to be implemented by late spring 2020, will help streamline and expedite the process forobtaining a court order for guardianship or trusteeship, and will reduce program costs.
Work is also underway with Service Alberta to leverage new technology related to online fillable PDFforms. Online fillable PDF application forms will be quicker and easier for private applicants to accessand complete, and will be easier and faster for stakeholders and the Courts to process and manage.

Quick Fact
Justice and Solicitor General
will begin to report annually
on key justice statistics in
2021.
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The OPGT will continue to collect and track data and trends on how long it takes an application tomake its way to court and for an order to be granted, so that the impact of the revisions can bemeasured and inform future process improvements.The Office of the Chief Medical Examiner (OCME) strives to improve case completion rates in order toreduce case age and provide grieving families with the death information they need to settle personalaffairs (e.g., estates, insurance, bank accounts). Case completion rates are tracked and OCME continuesto strive to do their best to increase efficiencies, working towards an average case age of six months orless. Over the past year, the OCME increased the percentage of cases completed within six months by3.2 percent. This was achieved through an internal focus on operational efficiencies. Going forward,the OCME will be challenged to maintain this productivity level, as several forensic pathologists haveleft the organization to pursue other opportunities. This will impact case completion rates and create abacklog of files, as the remaining doctors have higher workloads. To address this operationalchallenge, the OCME has arranged for temporary cover-off assistance to help mitigate staff shortages,while permanent resources are recruited.The Alberta Crown Prosecution Service (ACPS) is working to maintainresilience, work effectively, and adapt quickly to an ever-changingenvironment. The government has committed to spending up to $10million annually for four years to hire 50 new Crown prosecutors andsupport staff to enhance the functionality of Alberta’s criminal justicesystem. The hiring of additional Crown prosecutors and support staffwill ensure that criminal matters are dealt with in a timely andappropriate manner. This investment will help prioritize the safety ofAlbertans by ensuring the justice system is fair, fast, and responsive.Crown prosecutors will be assigned based on factors including workload, existing staffing patterns, geographical considerations and needs.In order to support the work of the new Crown prosecutors, additionalsupport staff will be hired. Work is underway to determine the level ofsupport resources needed. In addition to hiring support staff, theministry is expanding its articling program from eight to 16 articlingstudents, at an additional cost of approximately $650,000. To fulfil the government’s promise toensure rural Albertans are better served by the justice system, articling students will be placed in avariety of locations including Fort McMurray, Grande Prairie, Slave Lake, Fort Saskatchewan,Wetaskiwin, Edmonton Rural and Regional Response Office, and Calgary Rural and Regional ResponseOffice. Articling students will receive practical experience and will help Crown prosecutors focus onhigher- priority files, making the justice system faster and more efficient. In 2021, the articlingprogram will be further expanded to 20 articling students, which will make the Government of Albertathe largest employer of articling students in the province.Alberta’s criminal justice system primarily operates within a post-charge system. Police investigatematters to determine if there are reasonable grounds to believe an offence has been committed. If theybelieve an offence has been committed, they lay the appropriate charge(s) subject to their discretion.Once a charge is laid, a Crown prosecutor reviews the matter and applies the prosecutorial standard todetermine whether the prosecution should proceed. In Alberta, the prosecution standard consists ofassessing whether there is sufficient evidence to support a reasonable likelihood of conviction andwhether the public interest requires a prosecution.A pre-charge approval system, currently in operation in British Columbia, New Brunswick and Quebec,requires a Crown prosecutor to review and approve charges before they are laid by the police. Theprosecution standard (reasonable likelihood of conviction and whether there is public interest inprosecuting) is a higher threshold than the police charging standard (reasonable grounds to believe anoffence has occurred). A pre-charge system, in theory, compels police to consult with the prosecutor

Quick Fact
In 2019-20, Justice and
Solicitor General
developed a strategy for
the staged hiring of 50
new prosecutors that will
see 20 prosecutors hired
in 2020-21, 20
prosecutors hired in
2021-22, and 10
prosecutors hired in
2022-23.


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earlier in the justice continuum, which may lead to enhanced collaboration between the parties andstronger cases that are less likely to be stayed or withdrawn in court. This helps ensure that limitedpolice and prosecution resources are focused on viable matters and that court and prosecution timeand resources are not spent on cases that cannot be properly prosecuted. It also ensures Albertansfacing allegations of criminal conduct are only required to make court appearances and retain legalcounsel where the matter has reached the prosecutorial standard, thereby saving those individualstime and money where the allegation meets the police charging standard but not the prosecutorialtrial standard.In 2019-20, in collaboration with the Royal Canadian Mounted Police(RCMP) and the Public Prosecution Service of Canada (PPSC), Justiceand Solicitor General developed a pre-charge approval pilot toevaluate the impact of a pre-charge approval system on resources andon the administration of justice. Existing Alberta Crown ProsecutionService and RCMP resources were used to develop and staff the pilot,including designing a process for charge approval and developingsystems and tools to support the electronic transmission ofdocumentation. A qualitative and quantitative evaluation of the pilotwill be completed by summer 2020. Options are being evaluated forexpanding the pilot to another location where there can be furthertesting of a pre-charge system in Alberta.JSG continues to work with stakeholders to make the first appearance Justice of the Peace bail processmore effective and efficient. An effective bail process allows prosecutors and Justices of the Peace tomake informed decisions about the release or detention of an accused, helping ensure an accused isdetained when necessary or released with appropriate conditions by which he or she can abide. Toimprove the efficiency of the Justice of the Peace bail process, the Hearing Office Standing Committeecontinues to hold stakeholder workshops to address issues in a collaborative manner. Stakeholdersinvolved in the workshops include: the Provincial Court, Justices of the Peace, Resolution and CourtAdministration Services Division, Alberta Crown Prosecution Service Division, Correctional ServicesDivision, Edmonton Police Service (EPS), Calgary Police Service, RCMP, Public Prosecution Service ofCanada, Legal Aid Alberta, and members of the Defence Bar.At the workshops in 2019, stakeholders agreed to target timeframes for their respective part of thebail process and were held accountable to those times through continued statistical analysis of data. Anumber of strategies were developed to make the process more efficient, including varying shiftschedules and removing jurisdictional divisions for tele-bail. A working group was formed betweenthe EPS and the ministry to develop strategies to streamline the process between EPS and the CrownBail Office and to understand each other’s challenges. Through these strategies, the stakeholders wereable to increase the number of files heard on each shift.On December 18, 2019, the bail amendments of federal Bill C-75 came into effect and expanded thetools available to police when considering release of an accused person. This may reduce the totalnumber of people who need to speak to bail and allow those who do require a bail hearing to bebrought before the Justice of the Peace more quickly.

Quick Fact
A six-month pre-charge
approval pilot project
took place with RCMP
detachments in
Strathcona County,
Hinton and Canmore,
and ran from October 7,
2019 to March 31, 2020.
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2.3 Introduce democratic reforms to strengthen government.Albertans value democracy and expect accountability from their elected representatives. Thegovernment has committed to introduce democratic reforms to strengthen democracy in Alberta andprovide for more accountability for elected representatives. This past year, the government passedinto law the Senate Election Act, which reinstates the right of Albertans to select their nominees to theSenate and ensures that our senators will stand up for the values and economic interests of ourprovince.
Performance Measure 2.a: Provincial Court of Alberta lead time to trial for serious and violent

matters (weeks)

Prior Years’ Results
Current
Result

2019-20
Target2015-16

Result
2016-17

Result
2017-18

Result
2018-19

Result21.9weeks 24.1weeks 22.3weeks 22.1weeks 24.4weeks 21 weeks
In 2019-20, Provincial Court lead time for serious and violent offences was 2.3 weeks above last year’sresult, 2.4 weeks above the expected result, and 3.4 weeks above the stretch target.Lead time to trial for serious and violent offences is a direct measure of the Provincial Court’savailability to process these types of criminal case. The target for this measure was established as astretch target to reflect the ministry’s commitment to move matters through the courts more quickly.A variety of factors may affect case processing times in Provincial Court. These include the number ofaccused; the number and types of charges; the number of court appearances; the number of pre-trialmotions; whether there was a guilty plea; whether a trial was held; whether an accused has legalrepresentation; and whether a preliminary inquiry was requested and/or held. Case processing time isalso influenced by the availability of court resources (judges and lawyers), case management practices,and differences in the structure and operations of courts. Collectively, this measure is impactedthrough Alberta Justice and Solicitor General and Provincial Court Criminal’s collaboration in reducinglead times to trial.Although Alberta has seen a decrease in serious and violent offences over the 2019-20 business year,these types of cases continue to be more complex. Voluminous disclosure and a significant increase invideo and audio evidence contribute to the complexity. The Alberta Crown Prosecution Service cannotcontrol the volume or type of evidence generated in an investigation but as the volume of these typesof materials increases, it also increases the time necessary to review files prior to setting a hearingdate. In other words, although there are fewer serious and violent files in the system, their complexityresults in longer lead times. Reducing lead times in the near future will continue to be a focus and willbe carefully monitored, given recent impacts stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic. Reschedulingtrials in addition to accommodating new trials will continue to impact lead times in the short-term.
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Implemented in phases, Bill C-75 made significant changes to the Criminal Code in response to theSupreme Court of Canada’s ruling in R v Jordan, as well as the report of the Standing Senate Committeeon Legal and Constitutional Affairs, Delaying Justice is Denying Justice: An Urgent Need to AddressLengthy Court Delays in Canada in an effort to reduce delay in the criminal justice system. The AlbertaCrown Prosecution Service and Resolution and Court Administration Services are monitoring theimpact of these changes.Over the past several years, the ministry has actively employed numerous policy and program changesto reduce serious and violent case lead times to trial. The one premise on which the results largely restis that the ministry operates collaboratively towards these goals. Since the Supreme Court of Canada’s2016 Jordan decision, the ministry has demonstrated a shared approach in ensuring serious andviolent cases move efficiently through the criminal justice system. The Alberta Crown ProsecutionService continues to monitor serious and violent cases to determine if they are at risk of exceeding thenew time restrictions imposed by the Supreme Court of Canada.The ministry has committed to spend up to $10 million annually over four years to hire 50 newprosecutors and additional support staff. The hiring of additional Crown prosecutors and support staffwill ensure criminal matters are dealt with in a timely and appropriate manner. Moreover, it willcontribute towards addressing workload pressures that can result in low employee engagement andhigh turnover. For more details, please refer to the results analysis for Key Objective 2.2.
Performance Indicator 2.b: Number of Jordan applications granted

Prior Years’ Results
Total as of

March 31, 20202016-17
Result

2017-18
Result

2018-19
Result

2019-20
Result6*(October 2016 –March 2017) 6 9 7 28

In 2019-20, seven Jordan applications were granted. Since the October 2016 Supreme Court Jordanruling, 28 Jordan applications were granted (as of March 31, 2020). The 28 cases stayed by the Courtsdue to unreasonable delay represents 10 per cent of the Jordan applications filed.Section 11(b) of the Charter of Rights and Freedoms provides that any person charged with an offencehas the right to be tried within a reasonable time. The Supreme Court has now imposed “ceilings” ordeadlines on bringing criminal charges to trial – 18 months in Provincial Court and 30 months in Courtof Queen’s Bench. As part of a Jordan application hearing, the Crown bears the burden of justifying thedelay if the delay attributed to the Crown exceeds the specified ceilings. Failure to justify the delaymay result in a Jordan application being granted by the courts. This ultimately results in a stay ofproceedings.Reforming the criminal justice system is a complex and difficult initiative, but it is vitally importantand something that one agency working alone cannot tackle. Justice and Solicitor General has beenworking to create better outcomes for Albertans with less reliance on the more formal and typicallymore expensive parts of the justice system. The Alberta Crown Prosecution Service is working tocreate policies that will divert matters, where appropriate, away from the full-court process, while stillholding offenders to account. The ACPS continues to work with police to improve the quality andefficiency of the disclosure process and to streamline the processes for setting first appearance datesand executing warrants.
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An analysis of the majority of judicially stayed files was completed in early 2019 to determine whetherthe Alberta Crown Prosecution Service should adjust its practices to mitigate the risk of future stays ofproceeding resulting from delay. Four key recurring issues were found to impact judicial stays as theyrelate to R v Jordan: the lack of availability of Crown and Court resources; issues with obtainingevidence in a timely fashion; issues with actively finding individuals with outstanding warrants; and aculture of complacency within the justice system. The culture of complacency was noted by theSupreme Court of Canada in its R v Jordan decision and is a systemic issue nationally.Although the number of cases commenced continues to grow, Crown prosecutors are working withjustice system partners to reduce the number of cases that exceed 18 months and 30 months in theProvincial Court and Court of Queen’s Bench. Notably, the number of active serious and violent casesover 18 months has been reduced by 14.1 percent (since October 31, 2016) in the Provincial Court ofAlberta. This was achieved despite staffing issues, a 1.4 percent increase in the number of casescommenced from the previous year, and the sixth highest crime severity index in Canada  based on thelatest report, “Police-reported crime statistics in Canada, 2018” by Statistics Canada.The ministry has committed to spend up to $10 million annually for four years to hire 50 newprosecutors and additional support staff. The hiring of additional Crown prosecutors and support staffwill ensure criminal matters are dealt with in a timely and appropriate manner. Moreover, it willcontribute towards addressing workload pressures that can result in low employee engagement andhigh turnover. For more details, please refer to the results analysis for Key Objective 2.2.
Performance Indicator 2.c: Number of trial Crown prosecutors

Prior Years’ Results Current
Result

(2019-20)2015-16
Result

2016-17
Result

2017-18
Result

2018-19
Result311positions 311positions 319positions 337positions 337positions

On March 31, 2020, there were 337 trial Crown prosecutor positions across the province. Of the 337positions, 305 were filled and 32 were vacant. This performance indicator was included in the 2019-23 Business Plan for the first time. It helps inform the capacity of trial Crown prosecutors and tracksprogress towards the achievement of the government commitment to hire 50 new prosecutors andtheir support staff. Additional prosecutors are being hired to help strengthen the province’s ability torespond to rural crime and prosecute matters effectively.Justice and Solicitor General will be spending up to $10 million annually for four years to hire 50 newprosecutors and additional support staff. Justice and Solicitor General began planning foraccommodations for the additional prosecutors and support staff in 2019-20. While recruitmentstrategies are in place, ongoing recruitment and retention issues remain.In addition to hiring prosecutors, the ministry is expanding its articling program from eight lawstudents to 16 students. This will allow Crown prosecutors to focus on higher-priority duties. Formore details, please refer to the results analysis for Key Objective 2.2.
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Performance Indicator 2.d: Number of police officers

Prior Years’ Results
Current Result

(2018)2014
Result

2015
Result

2016
Result

2017
Result6,990 7,155 7,312 7,482 7,510

This indicator reports the total number of police officers in Alberta and includes the actual number ofpermanent sworn police officers available for active duty. Part-time personnel are converted to a full-time equivalent. In 2018, Alberta had 7,510 police officers or 174 officers per 100,000 people, whichincludes municipal police services, contract policing (RCMP and Aboriginal contract policing), andfederal policing. The number of officers decreased by one percent from 2017 to 2018, but hasincreased nine percent over the last decade. In 2008, there were 159.5 police officers per 100,000population, and in 2018, there were 174.4 policer officers per 100,000 population. This indicator isrelated to the government commitment to a rural crime strategy. Additional police officers are beinghired to help strengthen the province’s ability to respond to rural crime.
Performance Indicator 2.e: Indigenous over-representation

Prior Years’ Results
Current Result2015-16

Result
2016-17

Result
2017-18

Result
2018-19

Result38.9% 39.2% 40.3% 41.9% 41.2%
In 2019-20, the proportion of people in adult custody who identified as Indigenous was 41.2 percent,which is 0.7 percentage points lower than in 2018-19, but 2.3 percent higher than in 2015-16. Incomparison, in 2016 (the most current census data available), 6.5 percent of Alberta’s total populationidentified as Indigenous. The indicator was included in the 2019-23 Business Plan for the first time totrack the representation of adults who identified as Indigenous in custody in Alberta correctionalcentres in comparison to the representation in Alberta’s total population. It  indicates the effectivenessof the government efforts to address economic and social issues that affect Indigenous peoples. Theemphasis of Bill C-75 on giving special consideration to vulnerable populations, including Indigenouspeoples, during the bail process as well as changes to the handling of Administration of Justice chargesmay impact this indicator.The Indigenous Court Work Program (ICWP) ensures that Indigenous people receive fair, equitable,and culturally sensitive treatment in court by providing Indigenous litigants, their families andIndigenous victims with services or assistance before, during and after the court process. The ICWPoffers a variety of services in the Criminal, Family and Youth Divisions of the Provincial Court ofAlberta including non-legal advice on rights and responsibilities, explaining court processes, andinforming the court regarding the client’s personal circumstances.The ICWP aims to address overrepresentation by assisting the court in determining resolutions thatare appropriate and effective for Indigenous accused, including alternatives to incarceration. Thisprogram promotes the use of alternative measures and community resources by Indigenous people.
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Court workers have in-depth knowledge of the programs, services and restorative justice options thatare available within the local community and provide critical information to the courts regarding thecircumstances of the accused at the time of sentencing. The program also assists in reducing thenumber of Indigenous accused in remand by providing the Court with release strategies that addressan accused person’s bail plan.In 2019-20, ICWP provided court work services to over 8,700 new criminal law clients and another10,948 criminal law clients used court worker services multiple times while progressing through thecourt system. ICWP court workers provided assistance to an additional 2,772 victims, witnesses andfamily members. The program provided services to over 1,800 new family law clients and continuedservices to more than 1,100 family law clients, with family court matters.The Gladue Report Program supports the reduction of Indigenous people involved in the criminaljustice system by assisting the court in determining appropriate sentences for Indigenous offenders.Gladue reports outline Gladue factors including the offender’s unique history, intergenerationaltrauma caused by residential school experiences, historical trauma, effects of colonization and socio-economic circumstances that the court must take into consideration during sentencing. The programensures provincial compliance with Supreme Court of Canada rulings in Gladue and Ipeelee, andprevents cases from being overturned for failure by the court to consider Gladue factors in sentencing.In 2019-20, 883 Gladue reports were provided to the courts.The Indigenous Justice Program (IJP) supports the administration of Indigenous community-basedjustice programs, which reflect Indigenous values and offer alternatives to mainstream justice process.These programs offer alternatives to incarceration, including diversion, pre-sentencing options,sentencing alternatives, restorative justice, and offender reintegration services.The IJP currently funds 15 programs located in eight Métis Settlements and seven First Nationcommunities in Alberta. The services provided by the Indigenous communities vary and individualprograms are designed to incorporate community perspectives and capacity into mainstream justiceprocesses.
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Outcome Three: Albertans are supported in their interactions with the justice systemThe ministry is committed to providing high quality, accessible, citizen-focused services. This includesproviding services and supports to victims of crime and working to equip Albertans with informationand tools to resolve their family and civil matters, as well as timely access to the courts when needed.The ministry is also committed to improving online services to allow Albertans to interact with thejustice system more efficiently. Innovative use of technology will help support and enhance keybusiness functions across the ministry to ensure the expectations of Albertans are met for modern,timely and accessible services, enhanced convenience and more consistent availability across theprovince.
Key Objectives

3.1 Conduct a review of the current model of victim service delivery, victim assistance
funding and victim compensation.In 2019, the Government of Alberta pledged to conduct an immediate review of the current victimservice model, including service delivery, funding, and victim compensation to ensure the system ismeeting the needs of victims in a way that is effective and financially sustainable. Engagementoccurred late in 2019 and involved stakeholders from a number of areas, including past applicants ofthe Victims of Crime Financial Benefits Program (VFB); leadership executives and staff from victim-serving organizations (VSOs); Indigenous Elders, as well as Government of Alberta employees withvictim services experience. Approximately 885 surveys were completed as part of the engagementEngagement focused on several broad themes with respect to Alberta’s victim service model, such as:principles and vision, eligibility, accessibility, and services and supports. Results of the engagementindicated that:• There was agreement for a broad shift from providingcompensation to providing access to services for victims ofcrime;• Current eligibility criteria for victim services is generally correct,but may need to be updated to reflect changes in provincial andfederal legislation; and,• There is a need to ensure services to victims are accessible in allparts of the province, taking into consideration the unique needsof rural and remote regions.Work undertaken in 2019-20 will pave the way for further changes,including the development and implementation of a replacementprogram for the Victims of Crime Financial Benefits Program to a service-based program. Oneregulatory change that received approval during 2019-20, was increasing the victims of crimesurcharge on provincial fines from 15 percent to 20 percent, starting April 1, 2020.A new no-cost Community Impact Statement Program was established within the Victim ServicesBranch. This program will enable a representative of a community to submit a statement to the courtfor consideration at the sentencing of an accused person. The purpose of the community impactstatement is to describe how the crime has affected the community as a whole, including theemotional, physical, and economic impact, or fears a community may have for its security. It operatesin the same manner as the Victim Impact Statement Program, whereby on a finding of guilt of anaccused person, the Community Impact statement may be presented or read out at sentencing of theoffender. The Community Impact Statement Program will become operational in summer 2020.

Quick Fact
In 2019-20, more than
$19 million from the
Victims of Crime Fund was
granted to 42 Community
Based organizations and
73 Police Based
organizations for their daily
operations.


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The ministry is working to provide additional support for victims ofcrime via a new Restitution Recoveries Program. The program willhelp victims collect outstanding payments on restitution orders bygiving government the authority to use enforcement measures againstoffenders, such as garnishing wages or seizing and selling property, asneeded. This program will assist victims who would otherwise have tonavigate the legal system and attempt to collect court-orderedrestitution at their own expense and effort, with no assuranceoffenders will be held accountable to their sentence. The program isexpected to be operational in summer 2020. It will undergo acomprehensive two-year evaluation to determine the initialeffectiveness, and to provide recommendations for addressing anyadditional service gaps. Data will continue to be monitored forevaluative and reporting purposes thereafter.The ministry is working with justice system partners to provide a Domestic Violence Justice Response(DVJR) that delivers integrated services to meet the complex needs of victims of intimate partnerviolence. DVJR is a collaborative initiative involving government, police, and non-governmentorganizations. They focus on ensuring victims of intimate partner violence receive comprehensivesupports throughout their involvement in the criminal justice process, that they have a well-represented voice in the criminal court process, and are able to access resources to meet theirindividual needs. In January 2019, a DVJR pilot project – called the Nalah Centre – began in Edmonton,with the support of a Victims of Crime Fund grant of $1.4 million to the Edmonton John HowardSociety for a term of January 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021.The pilot builds on the success of the Calgary Homefront program by using direct referrals from lawenforcement to the local agency/victim-serving program and a fully integrated and focused servicedelivery approach for victims of domestic violence involving the local agency, the Alberta CrownProsecution Service, law enforcement, Correctional Services, City of Edmonton Domestic High RiskTeam and offender treatment programming all connected to community partners.A comprehensive evaluation is being undertaken, which will inform decision-making for the continuedimplementation of the Edmonton DVJR, as well as future expansion of integrated domestic violenceresponses to additional locations in Alberta.In 2019-20, the ministries of Justice and Solicitor General, Community and Social Services, and Culture,Multiculturalism and Status of Women collaborated on the development of Alberta’s Disclosure to
Protect Against Domestic Violence (Clare’s Law) Act, which received royal assent on October 31, 2019.The purpose of the act is to empower potential victims of domestic violence with informationregarding their intimate partner’s history of domestic violence perpetration. The act authorizes threeelements, the “right to ask,” where applicants have a right to information on their intimate partner; the“right to know,” which authorizes police to proactively inform a potential victim at risk of domesticviolence; and the “right to privacy,” which ensures the applicant’s personal information is safeguarded.Community and Social Services engaged civil society organizations with direct service delivery andexperience addressing domestic violence to continue to develop polices and regulations to support theact. A protocol working group was established by Justice and Solicitor General to develop theimplementation plan for police services, which encompasses the necessary processes, training andsystems required when the legislation comes into effect later in 2020-21. All of these efforts aresupported by input from Alberta’s 11 police services, victim serving agencies, civil societyorganizations and representatives from the ministries of Culture, Multiculturalism and Status ofWomen; Children’s Services; Indigenous Relations; and Service Alberta.

Quick Fact
In 2019-20, the ministry
purchased 24 Cisco
DX-80 units (similar to an
iPad) to assist victims to
testify in court
proceedings, allowing
video conference from a
remote room in the
courthouse and from
other courthouses.
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The Integrated Threat and Risk Assessment Centre (ITRAC) has been a key partner in the developmentof the Disclosure to Protect Against Domestic Violence (Clare’s Law) Act. ITRAC assesses threats anddevelops risk reduction plans for domestic violence and stalking cases in Alberta, as well as providingexpert advice and training about threat assessment, domestic violence, and stalking to police,government and community agencies throughout the province. ITRAC will be responsible for assistingin the provincial coordination of the new act to ensure that all risk-relevant information is reviewedand assessed prior to disclosure of information to Albertans.During 2019-20, it was decided that ITRAC’s mandate was bettersuited under the ministry’s Public Security Division for increasedcollaboration and communication with Victim Services andstakeholders responsible for offender management and theprovision of victim safety. Previously, ITRAC was part of the AlbertaLaw Enforcement Response Team. With increased funding, ITRAC’scapacity nearly doubled this past year, with the number of certifiedITRAC threat assessors increasing from five to nine, including threeministry employees and one Edmonton police member. This is thelargest contingent of threat assessors in ITRAC’s history. A corefunction of ITRAC is to increase collaboration and communicationbetween stakeholders. Over the past year, ITRAC assessments wereshared with multiple partners, including the:• High Risk Offender Office of the Alberta Crown Prosecution Service to ensure assessments wereavailable for use in court processes;• Correctional Services division to ensure offender management was informed by comprehensiverisk relevant information; and• Ministry of Children’s Services to ensure staff responsible for cases involving the children of ITRACsubjects of assessment and victims were fully aware of relevant risk.In 2019-20, more Indigenous Victims Outreach Specialists (IVOS) were added to 16 Indigenouscommunities across the province. IVOS have a physical presence in Indigenous communities as well asmunicipalities that service large Indigenous populations. They ensure immediate, culturally safe,trauma-informed support and assistance are provided to victims of crime in their own communities,reducing barriers to acquiring service. IVOS focus on building relationships, both with the victim andwith other service providers in the community.The Family Information Liaison Unit (FILU) is a specialized outreach initiative that specificallysupports families of missing or murdered Indigenous women and girls. This wrap-around service is anenhancement to regular victim service provision, as this unit has the capacity to assist with justicesystem navigation, cultural support, financial support for families to attend court processes and theprovision of funding for counselling and/or healing. The FILU provides information about servicesavailable to Indigenous victims of crime through their numerous community engagements – rangingfrom dedicated presentations at human service agencies and organizations to large grouppresentations at conferences and at Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girl (MMIWG)events; (Seventeen such presentations were provided last year.) The FILU is also linked with thepolice-based victim services agencies. A resource list of provincial Search and Rescue agencies hasbeen created that can be accessed by the FILU in support of their families, and is being released withinthe Missing Persons Professional Support Guides to be accessible to all Victims Service Units tosupport their clients with a missing loved one. Ultimately, increased awareness of available servicesshould result in increased access by Indigenous victims. More information about the FILUs can befound at http://alberta.ca/FILU. In addition, a series of short videos of staff being interviewed andproviding an overview of their role and the purpose of the program was provided through the JSGTwitter account in an effort to reach more Albertans using a variety of platforms.

Quick Fact
In 2019-20, the Integrated
Threat and Risk
Assessment Centre
(ITRAC) funding increased
to approximately
$1.7 million per year, for a
total of $5.1 million over
three years.
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Several elearning and online courses for both victim service providersand victims have been developed to provide staff with tools to supportfamilies of missing Albertans, and others dealing with the grief of notknowing the fate of their loved one, and are learning to live in a state ofprolonged uncertainty known as “ambiguous loss.” With this program,Alberta became the first province in Canada to launch ambiguous losstraining for criminal justice providers. Initially released internally toGovernment of Alberta staff on March 18, 2020, the elearning module willsoon be available to community partners focusing initially on the VictimServices Units around the province.Recognizing that some police officers in law enforcement agencies around Alberta were unfamiliarwith the Victims Services Units and their work, the ministry established a working team incollaboration with Edmonton Police Services, Lethbridge Police Services, and RCMP to create anelearning course providing standardized training and information to police officers in Alberta. Theelearning was launched with RCMP, Lethbridge Police, and Medicine Hat Police in September 2019,with a total of 90 police officers completing the training by the end of March 2020. This course will beavailable for the remaining large centres in Alberta in the coming year.
3.2 Develop a sustainable way for Albertans to access justice services, including through

alternative resolution options.Justice and Solicitor General provides mediation and alternative dispute resolution options toAlbertans through the Civil and Family Mediation Programs, as well as through a unique pilot programin the Edmonton area called the Family Justice Navigator program. Alternative dispute resolutionpathways enable Albertans to resolve their legal issues outside of the courts, when appropriate. Theseare less adversarial and more affordable options for Albertans resolving their family and civil matters.The ministry’s Maintenance Enforcement Program also continued with its implementation andevaluation of the Family Support Order Services (FSOS) Case Management Pilot Project to enhance itsclient-focused supports.The Provincial Court Civil Mediation Program allows parties toresolve their civil disputes (up to $50,000) outside of court in away that works best for them, freeing court resources to dealwith matters that require a judicial decision.The Family Mediation Program assists Albertans coping withchallenges such as divorce, separation, child access, andparenting time by providing a mediator to work towardsresolving their disputes. Participation in the program isvoluntary and is restricted to those with incomes of up to $40,000. In 2019-20, the Family MediationProgram received 1,398 new referrals to mediation. Of these referrals, 954 files proceeded tomediation and 812 total agreements (full and partial) were reached.The Family Justice Navigators Program is a collaborative program where family justice navigatorswork with community service providers in a community setting to support families undergoingdivorce, child custody disputes, and other changes to their family structure. The program focuses onthe social, relationship, parenting, financial, and legal needs of children and their parents with the aimof addressing problems, preventing these problems from escalating, and creating a less adversarialenvironment for these issues to be resolved. The project launched in January 2019 in two locations –the Alberta Supports Centre in Northgate, Edmonton and the Family and Community Services office inStrathcona County. An interim evaluation was completed, with clients supplying positive feedback interms of services provided as well as coordination between various stakeholders who provide a range

Quick Fact
Total Victims Served
by Victim Serving
Organizations in the
2019 calendar year
was 90,736.

Quick Fact
In 2019-20, the Provincial
Court Civil Mediation Program:

 Heard 1,349 disputes
 Resolved 635 disputes.
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of social, economic, and health support services to Albertans. 293 people were referred to the programwith a variety of needs; of these, 121 received in-depth assessments.The Family Support Order Services (FSOS) Case Management ServiceDelivery pilot launched in February 2018. In this pilot, theMaintenance Enforcement Program (MEP) moved away from a task-based model of service delivery and towards, a case managementapproach. Case management was undertaken to achieve, moreconsistent and personalized client service; to increase supportcollection; and to improve staff engagement. A 2015 Canadian Forumon Civil Justice report, entitled “The Cost of Justice”, concluded thatadopting a more client-centric approach with early point-of-entryresolution may also reduce the overall cost of justice. The finalevaluation report regarding the success of the pilot is expected bysummer 2020.
3.3 Provide greater services to Albertans in need.It is a priority for the Government of Alberta and the ministry to ensure the needs of Albertans aremet, including the needs of witnesses, low-income Albertans and young offenders. Witnessmanagement includes management of witness travel expenses, payment of those expenses, andpayment of expert witness fees, as well as regular contact with witnesses prior to trial to answerquestions and accommodate any necessary changes to court dates. The Alberta Crown ProsecutionService (ACPS) has been working to standardize processes and policies around witness payments toensure witnesses are treated consistently across the province. The transition of witness managementto ACPS allows the department to improve service delivery to, and improve communication with,witnesses and victims, ensuring Albertans continue to be supported in their interactions with thejustice system.In 2019-20, the work on transitioning witness management to Crown offices involved writing aprocedure manual for witness travel and accommodations arrangements, developing forms forwitnesses to submit for reimbursement of expenses, mapping processes for the Crown offices tosubmit the expenses for payment, and connecting the expense forms to Government of Albertapayment systems. A Protocol was drafted with respect to witness travel expenses and an internalprocedure was developed for the handling of expert fees. All processes and the Protocol were designedwith consideration given to the Alberta Fees and Expenses for Witnesses and Interpreters Regulation.Legal aid is part of a fair and accessible justice system. Legal Aid Alberta (LAA) plays an integral role inthe administration of justice by supporting some of Alberta’s most vulnerable citizens. A newgovernance agreement with Legal Aid Alberta took effect April 1, 2019. The agreement establishesredesigned services that will better address client needs and control costs to ensure the sustainabilityof Alberta’s Legal Aid Plan and support continued services to low-income and vulnerable Albertans,including:• Criminal Law – to increase efficiency of the courts;• Duty Counsel at first appearance bail hearing offices;• Family law – to increase client access and productivity;• Client Access – Automatic acceptance for Assured Income for the Severely Handicapped (AISH)clients providing their legal matter falls within LAA’s scope of services; and• Reserve Fund – to mitigate risks associated with cost uncertainty.

Quick Fact
Positive early indicators
from the FSOS Case
Management Service
Delivery pilot include a
reduction of formal
complaints by almost half
and incremental increases
in collections.
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Justice and Solicitor General worked with justice stakeholders tohelp fund legal aid services while saving tax dollars. As a result, theAlberta Law Foundation (ALF) will provide a special contribution toLAA of $34.4 million over three years, starting in 2019-20. Thisfunding is supplemental to the 25 percent of interest earned onlawyers’ trust accounts that ALF is legally obligated to pay to LAAunder the Legal Profession Act. The funding supports the governanceagreement with LAA and the Law Society of Alberta that makes legalaid available for low-income and vulnerable Albertans. Continuedpartnerships will ensure that LAA is able to provide essential andhigh-quality legal aid services to Albertans in the future.Justice and Solicitor General is implementing a multi-year action plan to support youth who have comeinto contact with the justice system. The action plan aims to promote more positive behaviours anddecrease the negative, reactive, emotional responses and behaviours of young persons in youth justicesettings. In 2019-20, the ministry worked to apply concepts to practice, incorporating lessons learnedfrom previous years, and strengthening the implementation of trauma training, resources, andsupports within the organization. It is anticipated that the learnings from this project will be used tomodify current practices and encourage support staff to provide services that acknowledge the linkbetween mental health, substance abuse, previous traumatic experiences, and involvement in thejustice system.
3.4 Implement technology enhancements to improve access and service delivery.Budget 2019 allocated $27 million in capital funding over four years towards the Justice DigitalProgram to provide Albertans with more timely and accessible justice system supports and servicesthrough technology enhancements. On September 30, 2019, MyAlberta Fines Search was launched.This enhancement to the existing online payment portal gives Albertans the ability to search forinformation on outstanding ticket fines, then redirects them to the existing eServices website to paytheir fines. Fines Search provides full visibility to Albertans of all outstanding ticket fines, includingthose that have passed to Fines Collection. More of these older fines are now being collected, resultingin an increase of over $250,000 in revenue in the first five months since launch.Work also began in 2019-20 to develop a province-wide Traffic Ticket Digital Service. This digitalservice will enable Albertans to manage their traffic tickets, understand legal obligations under theinfraction, be provided with options to address the infraction (e.g., time to pay), and pay their traffictickets online. It will support the move of more administrative matters out of First Appearance Centresand courtrooms so that focus can be on more serious and complex criminal, civil and family courtmatters. It is anticipated that the Traffic Ticket Digital Service will be tested in early 2020-21 with theintention of a gradual implementation as the year goes on.With the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus and the World Health Organization declaring a globalpandemic, the Government of Alberta and the Courts took unprecedented steps to address growingconcerns for the safety of Albertans, implementing digital alternatives to in-person courthouse visits.A number of Justice Digital initiatives are moving forward at an accelerated pace, including virtualcourt proceedings by videoconference and teleconference, and remote filing services. Going forward,additional projects will be evaluated and selected for development and implementation as part ofJustice Digital.All digital measures the ministry is undertaking are working towards the mitigation of a new strategicrisk centered around the outdated technologies that have the potential to create challenges associatedwith meeting the needs of Albertans for a modern, digital justice system. While the ministry hasrecently identified this risk to focus on for the next three years, Justice Digital will support innovationin Alberta’s courts and in the broader justice system. A lack of attention regarding outdated

Quick Fact
Legal Aid Alberta’s
approved 2019-20 budget
reflects negotiated changes
and service enhancements
and includes an operating
grant from the Government
of Alberta of $91.8 million.
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technology systems may lead to delayed decision-making, inadequate public access, as well as preventthe ministry from responding quickly and effectively to new and emerging issues.The Alberta Legal Assistance Network (ALAN) is an initiative designedto increase access to justice for Albertans, particularly low incomeAlbertans and Indigenous Albertans. The initiative will help alleviatepressures in all areas of the justice system by empowering andsupporting Albertans in their journey through the justice system. In2019-20, the ALAN initiative supported the re-launch of “Alberta 211” –a legal services information database managed by the Canadian MentalHealth Association. A soft launch was executed in August 2019 with theofficial launch taking place on October 10, 2019. An engagement sessionwas also held in October 2019 to provide stakeholders with informationabout Alberta 211 and to start the development of strategies to enhanceaccess to justice for Indigenous Albertans. The engagement sessionhighlighted the need to further develop the informed referral process.The ministry is working to implement new technology to manage the rising community correctionscaseload. This will include the introduction of mobile monitoring technology and development of apretrial risk assessment tool. Mobile monitoring technology will enhance the supervision of sentencedoffenders in the community while helping to address the rising numbers of pre-trial and sentencedoffenders under community supervision in Alberta. This will allow the ministry to ensure resourcesare allocated based upon evidenced based decision-making. The development and implementation of apre-trial risk assessment tool will enhance the supervision of pre-trial clients in Alberta. Resourcingand funds have been allocated to implement these changes in 2020-21.The Correctional Services Division has commenced work to develop a request for proposal to identifya vendor to meet the Government of Alberta’s electronic monitoring commitment through a mobilemonitoring application. Work is underway to develop requirements, gap analysis, benefits realizationand business transformation planning for the implementation of mobile monitoring and the pre-trialrisk assessment. This business transformation work is inclusive of policy changes and evaluation ofproposals.
Performance Measure 3.a: Alberta Justice and Solicitor General’s Family Mediation Program

(voluntary service to support families to reach a mutual agreement that focuses on the
child and avoids going to court) Resolution Rate

Prior Years’ Results
Current
Result

2019-20
Target2015-16

Result
2016-17

Result
2017-18

Result
2018-19

Result86% 88% 88% 87% 85% 90%
In 2019-20, the Family Mediation Program resolution rate was 85 percent, which was five percentbelow the target of 90 percent and two percent below the previous year’s result. The resolution ratewill continue to fluctuate, and is affected by various factors, such as the number of families attendingmediation, the complexity of issues, and program resources including availability of staff. However,trend analysis shows a consistent range over the past five years. From 2014-15 to 2019-20, theresolution rate fluctuated from a low of 85 percent to a high of 89 percent.

Quick Fact
The Alberta Legal
Assistance Network
provides Albertans
with information
about legal services
available across the
province.
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Albertans benefit from affordable and less adversarial options for resolving their family matters.Under the Family Mediation Program, Albertans coping with challenges such as divorce, separation,child access and parenting time can meet with a mediator to work towards resolving their disputes.The mediator provides information to families about child development and other issues related toparental conflict during separation and divorce, and helps parties to communicate and reach decisionsthat consider the needs and best interests of their children, while avoiding going to court.The Family Mediation Program is a voluntary program available to all couples, provided one of theparties has a gross annual income of less than $40,000. It practices facilitative mediation, which meansthat the mediators do not dictate outcomes or suggest ways disputes can be resolved. Rather,mediators use communication techniques to support participants to make their own decisions. Theprogram’s success can be affected by the complexity of the individual cases.The Family Mediation Program had an operational budget allocation of $2,082,934 for the 2019-20fiscal year. This included costs for materials and supplies such as office equipment, technologylicensing fees, staffing and contract service provider costs, as well as some staffing and operationalcosts related to delivery of Resolution Services programs and not specifically attributed to delivery ofthe family mediation services.
Performance Measure 3.b: The Provincial Court Civil Mediation Program (service to support

individuals to negotiate a resolution to their dispute instead of going to trial) Resolution
Rate

Prior Years’ Results
Current
Result

2019-20
Target2015-16

Result
2016-17

Result
2017-18

Result
2018-19

Result53% 49% 50% 46% 47% 53%
In 2019-20, the Provincial Court Civil Mediation Program resolution rate was 47 percent, which wassix percent below the target of 53 percent and one percent above the previous year’s result. TheProvincial Court Civil Mediation Program provides an opportunity for parties to resolve their owndispute in a way that works best for them. All Provincial Court civil matters are screened formediation. Files deemed suitable based upon the written pleadings are diverted into the mediationprogram. Parties do not need to proceed to court when matters settle, freeing court resources to dealwith matters that require a judicial decision. In August 2014, the financial jurisdiction of ProvincialCourt Civil increased from $25,000 to $50,000. This resulted in more complex files being diverted intomediation and more complex files are often more difficult to resolve through mediation.The Provincial Court Civil Mediation Program practices facilitative mediation, meaning mediators donot dictate outcomes or suggest ways for the dispute to be resolved. Rather, they utilizecommunication techniques to support participants to make their own decisions. It is up to the partiesto choose whether to resolve in mediation. Mediation coordinators screen files for those that theybelieve are likely to succeed at mediation, based upon the parties’ written pleadings. While specificcriteria exist that coordinators look for when selecting files for mediation, written pleadings may notconvey the true and full nature of the case or predict the likelihood of resolution at mediation. Thecomplexity of files, parties’ willingness and readiness to settle, the type of claim, the amount of theclaim, the skill of the mediator, and the chemistry between the parties and mediator, all likely impactthe resolution rate. Offering advanced training to roster members would likely result in an increase inresolution rate. However, for the past several years, as a result of the economic downturn, theprogram has not been able to invest in training.
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The Civil Mediation Program 2019-20 budget was $1,010,146. Services were delivered by a roster of165 mediators who were paid an honorarium of $75 per mediation session. The honorarium of $75per mediation session has remained unchanged since 2005. As a result, some mediators haveexpressed dissatisfaction with the Program and may choose to limit the time they spend with parties,whether or not resolution is in sight. This, in turn, may impact the resolution rate.
Performance Measure 3.c: Percentage of calls to the Resolution and Court Administration

Services Contact Centre resolved on the first call

Prior Years’ Results
Current
Result

2019-20
Target2015-16

Result
2016-17

Result
2017-18

Result
2018-19

ResultN/A N/A N/A 68% 72% 70%
In 2019-20, the Contact Centre first call resolution rate was 72 percent, which was two percent higherthan the target of 70 percent and four percent higher than the previous year’s result. The improvedresolution rate can be attributed to regular professional development sessions to increase staffknowledge of court processes so they are able to resolve more calls without needing to transfer toother business units.Several factors impact the Contact Centre’s first call resolution rate. Client inquiries outside the scopeof the RCAS Contact Centre and therefore need to be transferred to another RCAS service that has theauthority to act on the request. If fewer staff are available in the Contact Centre to take calls, callerwait-times can be longer and fewer calls are answered. Moreover, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, thelast two weeks of the fiscal year resulted in a 40-50 percent increase to the Contact Centre’s usual callvolume as Courts we closed and in-person, non-emergent matters were postponed. This required anincreased number of calls to be transferred to the courthouse to address scheduled appearancesduring the pandemic. The need to transfer calls had a negative impact on the resolution rate for thetwo week period at the end of March (dropping the resolution rate during this period to 53 percent);however, the overall resolution rate for the year was minimally affected. As the ministry moves todevelop additional online resources and services through Justice Digital, and Albertans are better ableto access court information online for themselves, it is possible that there will be fewer incoming callsto the Contact Centre.The RCAS Contact Centre budget for 2019-20 was $753,138.
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Performance Measure and Indicator Methodology

Performance Measure 1.a: Percentage of probation officers trained in the effective intervention
techniques derived from evidence-based principlesSource: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Correctional Services Division.This measure reflects the percentage of probation officers and senior probation officers trained inEffective Practices in Community Supervision (EPICS). The number of Government of Albertaprobation officers and senior probation officers in Community Corrections and Release ProgramBranch, and the Young Offender Branch is extracted from IMAGIS each fiscal year. Between 2016 and2019, the number of staff trained each fiscal year was added to the number of staff trained in previousfiscal years to calculate a cumulative total. This result was then divided by the total number ofprobation officers and senior probation officers. To ensure training needs are accurately determined,this methodology was changed in 2019-20 so that the calculation is based on the number of officersrequiring training rather than the number of officers receiving training. That is, the number of officersstill requiring training is subtracted from the total number of probation officers and senior probationofficers. The result is then divided by the total number of probation officers and senior probationofficers, multiplied by 100.

Performance Indicator 1.b: Violent and property crime rates per 100,000 populationSource: Uniform Crime Reporting Survey, Canadian Centre for Justice and Community Safety Statistics(CCJCSS). Data is available annually. CCJS CANSIM Table data was available on July 22, 2019.Crime rate is calculated using Incident-based Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR2) data, which measurespolice-reported crime in each Canadian jurisdiction. Crime rate measures the volume of police-reported crime, expressed as the number of crimes per 100,000 people. Historical results are revisedannually to reflect updated data provided by police services for incidents that occurred in previousyears. Property crime includes theft, break-and-enter, fraud, and possession of stolen goods. It doesnot include the use of threat of violence against an individual. Violent crime includes homicide,attempted murder, robbery, abduction and various forms of sexual assault. It also does not includetraffic incidents that result in death or bodily harm.
Performance Indicator 1.c: Violent and non-violent Crime Severity Index (CSI)Source: Uniform Crime Reporting Survey, Canadian Centre for Justice and Community Safety Statistics(CCJCSS). Data is available annually. CCJS CANSIM Table data was available on July 22, 2019.The Crime Severity Index (CSI) is a measure of the seriousness of police reported crime. Each criminaloffence is weighted based on the sentence imposed upon the offender. More serious offences, such ashomicide or serious assault, are weighted more heavily than minor thefts and minor assaults. Thecrime severity index is calculated using Incident-based Uniform Crime Reporting Survey (UCR2) data.It should be noted that Incident-based UCR2 data was not available for all respondents for the periodfrom 1998 to 2015. Instead, these police services continued to report to the Aggregate Uniform CrimeReporting Survey (UCR), which meant that a process of imputation was necessary to translate UCRdata into its UCR2 equivalents. Approximately 80 percent of the offence codes in the aggregate surveymapped 1:1 onto the incident-based violation codes in the UCR2. For the remaining categories ofviolation (such as the “aggregate other Criminal Code” category), it was necessary to estimate theirseriousness by looking at the distribution of other Criminal Code offences in the reports of existingUCR2 respondents.
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Performance Indicator 1.d: Drug Treatment Court recidivism ratesSource: Calgary Drug Treatment Court Society Report - Real Help for Addicted Offenders: EmergingEvidence from the Calgary Drug Treatment Court (January 2016); Drug Treatment Court: Data Reviewand Analysis (Trevor Fik, April 17, 2015); Edmonton John Howard Society Report - Edmonton DrugTreatment Court Service – Data Roll up 2014 to 2018 (https://johnhoward.org/programs-services/drug-treatment-court-services/); and Government of Canada Department of Justice - DrugTreatment Court Funding Program Evaluation Final Report (April 2015)Recidivism is the tendency for a convicted person to reoffend. Data for this indicator was based onseparate studies conducted on the reoffending rates of graduates of Edmonton and Calgary DrugTreatment Courts. The rates are derived by dividing the number of graduates who had no newconvictions within the timeframe specified in the study by the total number of DTC graduates,multiplied by 100. Primary data for the studies were obtained from the Justice Online InformationNetwork (JOIN) system and the results are as reported by the Edmonton John Howard Society and theCalgary Drug Treatment Court Society.
Performance Measure 2.a: Provincial Court of Alberta lead time to trial for serious and violent

matters (weeks)Source: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Alberta Crown Prosecution Service andResolution and Court Administration ServicesProvincial Court lead time to trial for serious and violent matters is the average number of weeksbetween the date serious and violent cases are scheduled for trial and the date that the trial or hearingis scheduled to occur. This average is not impacted by the trial or hearing not proceeding on the datescheduled. This measurement of lead times includes only serious and violent Criminal Code charges.Serious and violent crimes include: sexual offences against children; possessing/publishing/creating/distributing/selling child pornography; criminal negligence; manslaughter;murder; discharging of firearms; administering a noxious thing; dangerous driving; dangerousoperation of a motor vehicle; impaired driving causing bodily harm or death; criminal harassment;threats; assault; sexual assault; kidnapping; human trafficking; robbery withviolence/assault/weapon; intimidation; and arson.The ministry uses data from Justice Business Intelligence Datamart, which pulls its data from JusticeOnline Information Network (JOIN). Provincial Court lead-time data is calculated through a query tothe Justice Information Management System (JIMS) Datamart. The time between the date a case is setdown for trial and the date that the trial or hearing is scheduled to occur is obtained for each case thatinvolves a serious and violent crime. The average lead-time is then calculated for all cases with seriousand violent offences in that year.
Performance Indicator 2.b: Number of Jordan applications grantedSource: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Alberta Crown Prosecution ServiceOn a weekly basis, a report is run from the Justice Online Information Network (JOIN) to identify thecumulative cases where a Jordan application has been filed with the Provincial Court and the Court ofQueen’s Bench. This information is tracked and monitored on an on-going basis using the ProsecutionInformation and Scheduling Management System (PRISM) and with follow-up with the Jordanprosecution coordinators. The status of Jordan applications as they make their way through thejudicial system is reported on a quarterly basis to executive. The number of successful Jordanapplications annually is calculated by subtracting the total of cumulative successful applications as of



Results Analysis

44 Justice and Solicitor General | Annual Report 2019–20

March 31 of the previous fiscal year from the total of cumulative successful applications as of March 31of the current fiscal year.
Performance Indicator 2.c: Number of trial Crown prosecutorsSource: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Alberta Crown Prosecution ServiceThe number of trial Crown positions is determined at the end of the fiscal year by manual count. Anynet new positions added in-year are tracked and adjustments to documents are made accordingly.To determine the number of trial Crown prosecutors in the positions (i.e., on the salary register), aquery is run in IMAGIS. That number is cross-referenced with an internal database managed by theDirector of Workforce Planning, and an Excel spreadsheet is created to generate the final result. Thefinal result is a point-in-time-number, as of a specific date, and changes often throughout the fiscalyear due to staffing turnover. A query can be run on existing Human Resources databases to determinethe number of new hires and terminations each month.Not included in the trial Crown prosecutor count are Bail Crown, Appellate Counsel, Education/PolicyCounsel, Project Counsel, and Executive Directors.
Performance Indicator 2.d: Number of police officersSource: Canadian Crime Statistics, Statistics Canada: Canadian Centre for Justice and CommunitySafety Statistics (CCJCSS) - Police Administration Survey. Police Resources in Canada, 2018 Juristat.October 3, 2019.Every year, the Police Administration Survey collects data on police personnel and expenditures fromeach municipal, provincial and federal police service in Canada. The following security agencies areexcluded from the survey: the Canadian Security Intelligence Service, railway and military police, andgovernment departments enforcing specific statutes in the areas of income tax, customs and excise,immigration, fisheries and wildlife. Additionally, private security services and private investigators arenot included in the survey. Data in this report reflects police personnel as of May of the calendar year,and includes the actual number of permanent sworn police officers available for active duty. Part timepersonnel are converted to a full time equivalent.
Performance Indicator 2.e: Indigenous over-representationSource: Offender Records and Correctional Administration (ORCA) - Adult Offender Population Report.This indicator reflects the percentage of the average daily custody population comprised of Indigenouspeople. It is calculated by dividing the average number of Indigenous persons in custody by the totalaverage number of persons in custody, multiplied by 100 percent. Indigenous is defined as thoseinmates who self-identify as Aboriginal (Status), Aboriginal (Non-Status), Métis, or Inuit.  Daily countsare averaged over 365 days. The indicator includes inmates in a provincial correctional facility, andthose temporarily in hospital, out to court or in transit to another Alberta provincial correctionalfacility. It does not include inmates under custodial supervision but out of the centre on temporaryabsence programs, in mental health hospitals, in police cells, on provincial parole, or intermittentservers on non-reporting days. The source of information is the Offender Records and CorrectionalAdministration Adult Offender Population Report that identifies the average number of persons incustody in Alberta’s adult correctional centres during a given time period.
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Performance Measure 3.a: Alberta Justice and Solicitor General’s Family Mediation Program
(voluntary service to support families to reach a mutual agreement that focuses on the
child and avoids going to court) Resolution RateSource: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Resolution and Court AdministrationServicesFamily mediators and mediation team leads use an Excel spreadsheet to enter and track data for eachlocation (Edmonton, Calgary and Regional). Once each month the team leads report the totals to theManager, Dispute Resolution Services, who rolls up the provincial results. For each fiscal year, theFamily Mediation Program Resolution Rate is total "mediations resolved" divided by (total "resolved"plus total "not resolved") x 100.

Performance Measure 3.b: The Provincial Court Civil Mediation Program (service to support
individuals to negotiate a resolution to their dispute instead of going to trial) Resolution
RateSource: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Resolution and Court AdministrationServicesThe Provincial Court Civil Mediation Program Resolution Rate is total "mediations resolved" dividedby (total "resolved" plus total "not resolved") x 100. The data is available through the Provincial CourtCivil Mediation Access database.

Performance Measure 3.c: Percentage of calls to the Resolution and Court Administration
Services Contact Centre resolved on the first callSource: Justice and Solicitor General Administrative Data, Resolution and Court AdministrationServicesInformation about Contact Centre interactions is recorded in the Customer Relationship ManagementApplication, which was introduced in April 2018. Data is then exported to Microsoft Excel. Theresolution rate is calculated as the number of calls where customer’s inquiry was “resolved” on thefirst call divided by the total call volume x 100.
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Reporting Entity and Method of ConsolidationThe financial information is prepared in accordance with government’s stated accounting policies,which are based on Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.The reporting entity is the ministry for which the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General isaccountable.  The accounts of the Ministry, which includes the department of Justice and SolicitorGeneral, the Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund, and the Victims of Crime Fund, arefully consolidated using the line-by-line method, with the accounting policies described below.The Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee administers client trust and estates as required underthe Public Trustee Act.  As a trust fund, the accounts are not consolidated.Under this method, accounting policies of the consolidated entities are adjusted to conform togovernment accounting policies and the results of each line item in their financial statements(revenue, expense, assets and liabilities) are included in government’s results. Revenue and expense,capital, investing and financing transactions and related asset and liability balances between theconsolidated entities have been eliminated.A list of the individual entities making up the ministry are shown on the “Management’s Responsibilityfor Reporting” statement included in this annual report.
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Ministry Financial Highlights

Statement of Revenues and Expenses (unaudited)

2019

Revenues
Federal government grants $ 46,158 $ 46,068 $ 38,686 $ (90) $ 7,382
Premiums, fees and licences 56,895 56,193 55,647 (702) 546
Investment income 1,043 2,796 3,129 1,753 (333)
Other 265,291 254,964 244,492 (10,327) 10,472
Ministry total 369,387 360,021 341,954 (9,366) 18,067
Inter-ministry consolidation adjustments - (10,084) (14) (10,084) (10,070)

Adjusted ministry total 369,387 349,937 341,940 (19,450) 7,997

Expenses  - directly incurred

Programs
Ministry Support Services 25,189 24,004 24,949 (1,185) (945)
Resolution and Court Administration Services 196,866 198,599 200,585 1,733 (1,986)
Legal Services 54,268 56,169 55,866 1,901 303
Alberta Crown Prosecution Service 104,896 104,330 103,605 (566) 725
Justice Services 169,897 161,641 176,072 (8,256) (14,431)
Public Security 532,935 524,147 523,163 (8,788) 984
Correctional Services 289,011 295,186 289,756 6,175 5,430
Alberta Human Rights 7,103 6,904 8,079 (199) (1,175)
Motor Vehicle Accident Claims 30,838 32,038 31,253 1,200 785
Victims of Crime Fund 43,394 43,347 42,972 (47) 375
Ministry total 1,454,397 1,446,365 1,456,300 (8,032) (9,935)
Inter-ministry consolidation adjustments - (1,676) (1,720) (1,676) 44

Adjusted ministry total 1,454,397 1,444,689 1,454,580 (9,708) (9,891)
- -

Annual Deficit-before inter-ministry $ (1,085,010) $ (1,086,344) $ (1,114,346) (1,334) 28,002
 consolidation adjustments

Inter-ministry consolidation adjustments - (8,408) 1,706 (8,408) (10,114)
Adjusted annual deficit $ (1,085,010) $ (1,094,752) $ (1,112,640) (9,742) 17,888

Change from
Budget 2019 Actual

In thousands
 Actual Actual Budget

2020
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Revenue and Expense Highlights

Revenues

Budget to ActualMinistry revenues in 2019-20 are $349.9 million, which is $19.5 million or 5.6 percent lower thanbudgeted. The decreased revenues are mainly the result of:• $20.9 million decrease in fine revenue due to lower than anticipated payments of Traffic Safety Acttickets and associated Victims of Crime surcharges; and• $1.7 million for Late Payment Penalty due to reduced number of clients paying late fees.Offset by:• $1.8 million increase in investment income revenue mainly due to higher than expected interestrates over the year; and• $1.3 million increase for the Maintenance Enforcement Program due to higher than budgetedrevenue from Family Support Order Services (FSOS) fees and penalties.
Actual to ActualActual revenues in 2019-20 reflect an increase of $8.0 million or 2.3 percent:• $7.4 million increase in federal funding to the Guns and Gangs and Drug Impaired Drivinginitiatives, Immigration and Refugee Legal Aid, and the Youth Justice Program;• $1.8 million increase in Fines and Late Payment Penalty fees collected;• $1.2 million increase for the Maintenance Enforcement Program primarily due to increases inFSOS penalties and fees; and• $1.0 million increase in the Recoveries for Enhance Policing Services due to increased FTEutilization within Enhanced Policing Agreements and a slight increase in court fees.Offset by:• $3.4 million reduction in the Federal Surcharge as a result of the R. v. Boudreault Supreme Court ofCanada decision.
Expenses

Budget to ActualThe total operating expense in 2019-20 was $1,444.7 million, which was $9.7 million or 0.7% lowerthan budget. The decrease is mainly due to the in-year reduction in grants.
Actual to ActualActual expenses were $9.9 million or 0.7% lower than 2018-19 with the following highlights:• $18.9 million reduction in grants to Legal Aid Alberta (LAA), Alberta Law Enforcement ResponseTeam (ALERT) and Victims Financial Benefits; and• $5.1 million reduction in discretionary spending in office, IT and other supplies due to budgetrestraints.Offset by:• $11.8 million increase in salaries and wages primarily due to increased overtime, filling criticalvacancies in Enforcement Programs and critical programs such as Corporate Security, andincreased spending in Alberta Crown Prosecution Services; and• $2.3 million increase in MVAC personal injury claims.
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Breakdown of Revenues (unaudited)The following information presents detailed revenues of the ministry. The objective of detailedrevenues disclosure is to provide information that is useful in understanding and assessing thefinancial impact of government’s revenue raising and for enhancing legislative control.
2020 Revenues Actuals

In thousands

• Fines and Penalties ($198.3 million). Overall, Traffic Safety Act fines make-up the majority of thiscategory, and includes the following:
○ Ticket Processing Retention fee - 26.67% of all Traffic Safety Act fines across the province aswell as the full amount of fines levied by Highway Traffic Sheriffs on Alberta highways;
○ Victims of Crime Fund (VoCF) also levies a 15% Fine Surcharge on all traffic ticket fineamounts that is deposited in the fund with statutory authority to spend on victims;
○ Federal Victims Surcharge from federal Criminal Code offences may also be imposed by thejudiciary and submitted to the VoCF; and
○ Late Payment Penalty collected when tickets not paid on time.• Transfers from Government of Canada ($46.1 million). Revenue from federal agreements,primarily in support of Young Offenders Programs, Legal Aid services, Child Centered FamilyJustice, Indigenous Court Worker Program, and the Guns and Gangs and Drug Impaired DrivingTraining programs.• Other Premiums, Fees and Licences ($33.3 million). Resolution and Court AdministrationServices is responsible for collecting fees for some of the services provided to the public including:bankruptcy, civil commencement, trial, search, surrogate and transcript fees. Security Services andInvestigator fees, official documents and appointments application and license fees, MedicalExaminer autopsy and toxicology fees.• Motor Vehicle Accident Claims (MVAC) ($22.9 million). Revenue is derived from a $6 feeincluded with vehicle registrations collected at provincial registry offices and MyAlberta eServicesremitted to offset MVAC costs (statutory program).

Transfers from
Government of

Canada
$46,068 13%

Investment Income
$2,796 1%

Motor Vehicle
Accident Claims

Fees
$22,860 6%

Other Premiums,
Fees and
Licences

$33,333 9%Fines and
Penalties

$198,297 55%

Maintenance
Enforcement

Program
$17,602 5%

Other Revenue
$39,065 11%
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• Maintenance Enforcement ($17.6 million). Comprised mainly of amounts subrogated by theCrown’s Family Support Order Services for the Maintenance Enforcement Program.• Investment Income ($2.8 million). Comprised mainly of interest earned on the Human RightsEducation and Multiculturalism Fund and Victims of Crime Fund, and department funds investedin the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund.• Other Revenue ($39.0 million). Mainly from recoveries for Enhanced Policing Services andEdmonton International Airport policing service. It also includes MVAC judgment recoveries andproceeds from abandoned and seized vehicles.• Inter-Ministry Elimination (-$10.1 million). Mainly for revenues generated from the transfer ofOne-IMT funded capital assets from Service Alberta recorded as Other Revenue.
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Salaries, wages
and employee

benefits
$767,392 53%

Supplies and
services

$388,567 27%

Grants
$252,803

18%

Amortization of
tangible capital

assets
$2,431 <1%

Other
$35,172 2%

Expenses – Directly Incurred Detailed by Object (unaudited)The following information presents expenses of the ministry that were directly incurred by object. Theobjective of disclosure of expenses by object is to provide information that is useful in evaluating theeconomic impact of government acquiring or consuming various types of resources.
2020 Expenses Actuals

In thousands

• Salaries, wages and employee benefits expenses of $767.4 million are the ministry’s largestoperating expense, or 53% of total operating expense. The ministry provides frontline programsand services that ensure Albertans have safe and protected communities and fair access to thejustice system. Funding primarily covers positions in correctional facilities, Crown prosecutors,judicial and court staff, sheriffs and enforcement workers, legal counsel and other justice servicesstaff.• Supplies and services spending of $388.6 million or 27% of total spending is primarily for theProvincial Police Services Agreement and inmate food services contracts in Correctional Services.In addition to contract services, the ministry purchases all materials and supplies for courthousesand correctional facilities across the province.• Grants spending of $252.8 million or 18% of total spending provides operational funding fordelivery of services by key stakeholders and partners via support to individuals, organizations andcommunities through JSG grant programs. This includes the operating grant to LAA to ensure low-income Albertans have access to legal services; the grant to ALERT to combat gangs and seriouscrime; the grants for Policing Assistance to Municipalities in support of effective and adequatepolicing for Alberta communities; and grants to victims organizations from the Victims of CrimeFund.• Amortization of tangible capital assets ($2.4 million) and other expenses ($35.2 million) or2% of total expenses primarily relates to Motor Vehicle Accidental Claims program, Victim ofCrime Fund and traffic ticket write-offs.• Inter-ministry elimination (-$1.7 million) for the services provided by Alberta Health Services.
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Supplemental Financial Information

Tangible Capital Assets (unaudited)

Net Book Value as of March 31, 2020
In thousands

• Tangible capital assets include work in progress computer hardware (65%), equipment (25%) andcomputer hardware (10%).• Work in Progress primarily comprised of $20.0 million in Resolution and Court AdministrationServices for Justice System Technology Renewal, $2.2 million in Alberta Crown ProsecutionServices for Criminal eFile, $1.0 million in Public Security for the Distributed Antenna System and$0.9 million for others.• Equipment primarily comprised of $3.5 million in Correctional Services (e.g. body scanners), $2.6million for the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner (e.g. x-ray equipment), $2.4 million in PublicSecurity Division (e.g. vehicles & in-car video equipment), and $0.5 million in the courts and otherdivisions.• Computer Hardware and Software primarily comprised of $1.8 million in Resolution and CourtAdministration Services (technology for courtrooms), $1.6 million in Public Security Division(Panasonic Toughbooks, dispatch consoles and AVATAR victim grants tracking system) and $0.4million in Business Intelligence Analytics software.

Equipment,
$9,046 25%

Computer
Hardware and

Software,
$3,841 10%

Work in
Progress,

$24,142 65%
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Financial Statements of Other Reporting Entities
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General
Report on the Financial Statements

OpinionI have audited the financial statements of the Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund,which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements ofrevenues and expenses, change in net financial assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, andnotes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, thefinancial position of the Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund as at March 31, 2020, andthe results of its operations, its changes in net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year thenended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for opinionI conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Myresponsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Human Rights Educationand Multiculturalism Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit ofthe financial statements in Canada, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordancewith these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriateto provide a basis for my opinion.
Other informationManagement is responsible for the other information. The financial statements of the Human RightsEducation and Multiculturalism Fund are included in the Annual Report of the Ministry of Justice and
Solicitor General that is prepared by the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General. The otherinformation comprises the information included in the Annual Report of the Ministry of Justice and
Solicitor General, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.The Annual Report of the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General is expected to be made available to meafter the date of this auditor’s report.My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express anyform of assurance conclusion thereon.In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the otherinformation identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiallyinconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwiseappears to be materially misstated.If, based on the work I will perform on this other information, I conclude that there is a materialmisstatement of this other information, I am required to communicate the matter to those chargedwith governance.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statementsManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements inaccordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control asmanagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that arefree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Human RightsEducation and Multiculturalism Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless an intentionexists to liquidate or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Human Rights Education andMulticulturalism Fund’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsMy objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wholeare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's reportthat includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatan audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will alwaysdetect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and areconsidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influencethe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, I exerciseprofessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due tofraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of notdetecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrideof internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund's internalcontrol.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountingestimates and related disclosures made by management.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accountingand, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to eventsor conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Human Rights Education and MulticulturalismFund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I amrequired to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financialstatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are basedon the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events orconditions may cause the Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund to cease to continueas a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including thedisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions andevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannedscope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that I identify during my audit.
[Original Signed By W. Doug Wylie FCPA, FCMA, ICD.D]Auditor GeneralJune 23, 2020Edmonton, Alberta
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Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2019
Budget Actual Actual

In thousands

Revenues
Internal Government Transfer
   Department of Justice and Solicitor General $ 500 $ 500 $ 1,735
Investment income 100 67 81
Premiums, fees and licences 75 16 48
Other revenue 10 - -

685 583 1,864

Expenses - Directly incurred (Note 2(a) and Schedule 1 and 2)

Programs
Support to community groups 500 109 1,411
Education programs - 17 432

500 126 1,843
Annual surplus $ 185 $ 457 $ 21

2020
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Statement of Financial Position

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

As at March 31, 2020

Contractual obligations (Note 7)The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  (Note 4) $ 4,158 $ 3,719
Accounts receivable 7 7

4,165 3,726

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5) 3 23

Net financial assets 4,162 3,703

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 6) 4 6

Net assets $ 4,166 $ 3,709

Net assets at beginning of year $ 3,709 $ 3,688
Annual surplus 457 21
Net assets at end of year $ 4,166 $ 3,709

In thousands
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Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2019
Budget Actual Actual

 In thousands

Annual surplus $ 185 $ 457 $ 21
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 6)               - 2 2
Increase in net financial assets $ 185 $ 459 $ 23
Net finanical assets at beginning of year 3,680 3,703 3,680
Net financial assets at end of year $ 3,865 $ 4,162 $ 3,703

2020
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Statement of Cash Flows

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Operating transactions
Annual surplus 457$ 21$
Non-cash items Included in annual surplus
    Amortization of tangible captial assets (Note 6) 2 2

459 23

Decrease in accounts receivable - 3
(20)                     (28)

Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions 439                       (2)

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  $               439  $                   (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                3,719 3,721
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $            4,158 3,719

In thousands

Decrease in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (Note 5)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 1 AUTHORITYThe Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund (the fund) operates under theauthority of the Alberta Human Rights Act, Chapter A-25.5, Revised Statutes of Alberta2000.The purpose of the fund is to promote equality, increase understanding and acceptance ofAlberta’s diverse racial and cultural composition, and inform Albertans about their rightsand responsibilities under the Alberta Human Rights Act.The fund is owned by the Crown in Right of Alberta and as such has a tax exempt status.
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICESThese financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian Public SectorAccounting Standards.

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting

RevenuesAll revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.Government TransfersTransfers from all levels of governments are referred to as government transfers.Government transfers are recognized as deferred contributions if the eligibility criteriafor the transfer, or the stipulations together with the fund's actions andcommunications as to the use of transfers, create a liability. These transfers arerecognized as revenue, as the stipulations are met and, when applicable, the fundcomplies with its communicated uses of these transfers.All other government transfers, without stipulations for the use of the transfer, arerecognized as revenue when the transfer is authorized and the fund meets eligibilitycriteria (if any).
ExpensesDirectly IncurredDirectly incurred expenses are those costs the fund has primary responsibility andaccountability for, as reflected in the government’s budget documents.In addition to program operating expenses such as supplies, etc., directly incurredexpenses also include amortization of tangible capital assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting (cont’d)

Expenses (cont’d)Incurred by OthersServices contributed by other related entities in support of the fund’s operations arenot recognized but are disclosed in Schedule 2.Grant ExpenseGrants are recognized as expenses when authorized, eligibility criteria, if any, are metby the recipients and a reasonable estimate of the amounts can be made.
Valuation of Financial Assets and LiabilitiesFair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transactionbetween knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payableand other accrued liabilities are estimated to approximate their carrying valuesbecause of the short- term nature of these instruments.
Financial AssetsFinancial assets are assets that could be used to discharge existing liabilities or financefuture operations and are not for consumption in the normal course of operations.Financial assets are the financial claims, such as advances to and receivables fromother organizations and other individuals, as well as the below listed assets.Cash and cash equivalentsCash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-termhighly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash andthat are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents are held forthe purpose of meeting short-term commitments rather than for investment purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting (cont’d)

Financial Assets (cont’d)Accounts receivableAccounts receivable are recognized at the lower of cost or net recoverable value. Avaluation allowance is recognized when recovery is uncertain.
LiabilitiesLiabilities are present obligations of the fund to external organizations and individualsarising from past transactions or events occurring before the year end, the settlementof which is expected to result in the future sacrifice of economic benefits. They arerecognized when there is an appropriate basis of measurement and management canreasonably estimate the amounts.
Non-Financial AssetsNon-financial assets are acquired, constructed, or developed assets that do notnormally provide resources to discharge existing liabilities, but instead:a) are normally employed to deliver government services;b) may be consumed in the normal course of operations; andc) are not for sale in the normal course of operations.Non-financial assets are limited to tangible capital assets.Tangible capital assetsTangible capital assets of the fund are recognized at cost less accumulatedamortization and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives ofthe assets. The threshold for capitalizing new systems development is $250,000 andthe threshold for major systems enhancements is $100,000. The threshold for all othertangible capital assets is $5,000.Amortization is only charged if the tangible capital asset is put into service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 3 FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGESThe Public Sector Accounting Board has approved the following accounting standards:• PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (effective April 1, 2021)This standard provides guidance on how to account for and report liabilities forretirement of tangible capital assets.• PS 3450 Financial Instruments (effective April 1, 2021)Adoption of this standard requires corresponding adoption of: PS 2601, ForeignCurrency Translation; PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation; and PS 3041,Portfolio Investments in the same fiscal period. These standards provide guidance on:recognition, measurement and disclosure of financial instruments; standards on howto account for and report transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency;general reporting principles and standards for the disclosure of information infinancial statements; and how to account for and report portfolio investments.• PS 3400 Revenue (effective April 1, 2022)This standard provides guidance on how to account for and report on revenue, andspecifically, it addresses revenue arising from exchange transactions and unilateraltransactions.Management is currently assessing the impact of these standards on the financialstatements.
NOTE 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(in thousands)Cash and cash equivalents include deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment TrustFund (CCITF) of the Province of Alberta. The CCITF is managed with the objective ofproviding competitive interest income to depositors while maintaining appropriatesecurity and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio is comprised of high-quality,short-term securities with a maximum term to maturity of three years. As at March 31,2020, securities held by the fund have a time weighted return of 1.9% (2019 – 1.8%) perannum. Due to the short-term nature of CCITF investments, the carrying valueapproximates fair value.
NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(in thousands)

Other Program Expenses $ 3 $ 23
2020 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 6 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
(in thousands)

(1) Equipment includes video conference equipment.
NOTE 7 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

(in thousands)Contractual obligations represent a legal obligation of the fund to others that will becomeliabilities in the future when the terms of those contracts or agreements are met.As at March 31, 2020, the fund has no obligations under contracts and programs (2019 -$138).
NOTE 8 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTSThe deputy minister and the senior financial officer approved these financial statements.

Estimated useful life

Historical Cost
Beginning of year $ 17 $ 17
Additions - -
Disposals including write-downs - -

17 17
Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year 11 12
Amortization expense 2 2
Effect of disposals including write-downs - -

13 14
Net book value at March 31, 2020 $ 4
Net book value at March 31, 2019 $ 6

2020 2019
Equipment (1)

3-40 years
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Expenses – Directly Incurred Detailed by Object Schedule 1

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2020

(1) The fund received financial and administrative services from the Department of Justice andSolicitor General.

2019
Budget Actual Actual

Supplies and services -$ 14$ 86$
Supplies and services from support service

Arrangements with related parties (1) - - 625
Grants 500 109 1,130
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 6) - 2 2
Total expenses 500$ 125$ 1,843$

2020

In thousands
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Allocated Costs Schedule 2

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2020

(1) Expenses – Directly Incurred as per Statement of Revenues and Expenses.
(2) Accommodation Costs, including grants in lieu of taxes, allocated by square meters.

2020 2019

Total Total
Program Expenses Expenses

Support to Community Groups $           109 $               76  $           185 $        1,496
Education Programs            17                -            17           432

 $           126  $               76  $           202  $        1,928

Expenses - Incurred by Others

In thousands

Accommodation
Expenses (1) Costs(2)
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Related Party Transactions Schedule 3

Human Rights Education and Multiculturalism Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2020

Related parties are those entities consolidated or accounted for on the modified equity basis in theGovernment of Alberta’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Related parties also include keymanagement personnel in the fund and their close family members.The fund paid or collected certain taxes and fees set by regulation for premiums, licenses and othercharges. These amounts were incurred in the normal course of business, reflect charges applicable toall users, and have been excluded from this schedule.The fund had the following transactions with related parties reported on the Statement of Revenuesand Expenses and the Statement of Financial Position at the amount of consideration agreed uponbetween related parties:

The fund also had transactions with related parties for which no consideration was exchanged.  Theamounts for these related party transactions are estimated based on the costs incurred by the serviceprovider to provide the service. These amounts are not reported in the financial statements but aredisclosed in Schedule 2.

2020 2019

Transfer from the Department of Justice and
Solicitor General $               500  $             1,735

Expenses - directly incurred
 Shared services agreement  $                    -  $               625

Revenues
In thousands
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Victims of Crime Fund

Audited Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General
Report on the Financial Statements

OpinionI have audited the financial statements of the Victims of Crime Fund, which comprise the statement offinancial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of revenues and expenses, change in netfinancial assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,including a summary of significant accounting policies.In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, thefinancial position of the Victims of Crime Fund as at March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations,its changes in net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance withCanadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for opinionI conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Myresponsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Victims of Crime Fund inaccordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements inCanada, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Ibelieve that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for myopinion.
Other informationManagement is responsible for the other information. The financial statements of the Victims of CrimeFund are included in the Annual Report of the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General. The otherinformation comprises the information included in the Annual Report of the Ministry of Justice and
Solicitor General, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The
Annual Report of the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General is expected to be made available to meafter the date of this auditor’s report.My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express anyform of assurance conclusion thereon.In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the otherinformation identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiallyinconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwiseappears to be materially misstated.If, based on the work I will perform on this other information, I conclude that there is a materialmisstatement of this other information, I am required to communicate the matter to those chargedwith governance.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statementsManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements inaccordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control asmanagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that arefree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Victims of CrimeFund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to goingconcern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless an intention exists to liquidate or tocease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Victims of Crime Fund’s financialreporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsMy objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wholeare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's reportthat includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatan audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will alwaysdetect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and areconsidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influencethe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, I exerciseprofessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due tofraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of notdetecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrideof internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of the Victims of Crime Fund's internal control.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountingestimates and related disclosures made by management.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accountingand, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to eventsor conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Victims of Crime Fund’s ability to continue as agoing concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention inmy auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures areinadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up tothe date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Victims ofCrime Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including thedisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions andevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannedscope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that I identify during my audit.
[Original Signed By W. Doug Wylie FCPA, FCMA, ICD.D]Auditor General
June 23, 2020Edmonton, Alberta
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Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Victims of Crime Fund

Year ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2019
Budget Actual Actual

In thousands
Revenues

Government transfers
Federal and other government grants $ 1,362 $ 1,077 $ 1,149

Investment income 500 1,220 1,335
Other

Provincial fine surcharge 45,650 41,901 41,756
Federal fine surcharge 2,500 (1,282) 2,242
Refunds of Expense - 1,323 787

50,012 44,239 47,269

Expenses - directly incurred (Note 2(a) and Schedule 1 and 2)

Programs
Financial Benefits 17,298 18,603 19,363
Assistance to Victims Organizations 24,893 23,527 22,499
Criminal Injuries Review Board 400 427 395
Program Support Services 803 790 715

43,394 43,347 42,972
Annual Surplus $ 6,618 $ 892 $ 4,297

2020
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Statement of Financial Position
Victims of Crime Fund

As at March 31, 2020

Contingent assets (Note 6)Contractual Obligations (Note 9)The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) 72,809$ 74,614$
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 30,265 32,535

103,074 107,149

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7) 26,099 31,157

Net financial assets 76,975 75,992

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 8) 242 333

Net assets 77,217$ 76,325$

Net assets at beginning of year 76,325$ 72,028$
Annual surplus 892 4,297
Net assets at end of year 77,217$ 76,325$

In thousands
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Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
Victims of Crime Fund

Year ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2019
Budget Actual Actual

In thousands

Annual surplus $ 6,618 $ 892 $ 4,297
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 8) 69 91 91
Increase in net financial assets $ 6,687 $ 983 $ 4,388
Net financial assets at beginning of year 71,604 75,992 71,604
Net financial assets at end of year $ 78,291 $ 76,975 $ 75,992

2020
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Statement of Cash Flows
Victims of Crime Fund

Year ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Operating transactions
Annual Surplus 892$ 4,297$
Non-cash items included in annual surplus
  Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 8) 91 91

983 4,388

Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable 2,270           (1,198)
Decrease in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (Note 7)           (5,058)           (4,958)
Cash applied to operating transactions           (1,805)           (1,768)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents           (1,805)           (1,768)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 74,614 76,382
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 72,809$ 74,614$

In thousands
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 1 AUTHORITYThe Victims of Crime Fund (the fund) operates under the authority of the Victims of Crime
Act, Chapter V-3, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000.The purpose of the fund is to provide grants to victims’ programs and to pay benefits tovictims, or their dependents, who suffer injury or death as the result of a criminal offencespecified in the regulations of the Victims of Crime Act, using provincial and federalsurcharge revenues.The fund is owned by the Crown in Right of Alberta and as such has a tax exempt status.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICESThese financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian Public SectorAccounting Standards.
(a) Basis of Financial Reporting

RevenuesAll revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Surcharges on finerevenues are recognized at the point of conviction, which excludes certain outstandingfederal statute and provincial statute fines that are satisfied by means other than cashpayment.Government TransfersTransfers from all levels of governments are referred to as government transfers.Government transfers are recognized as deferred contributions if the eligibility criteriafor use of the transfer, or the stipulations together with the fund's actions andcommunications as to the use of transfers, create a liability. These transfers arerecognized as revenue as the stipulations are met and, when applicable, the fundcomplies with its communicated uses of these transfers.All other government transfers, without stipulations for the use of the transfer, arerecognized as revenue when the transfer is authorized and the fund meets eligibilitycriteria (if any).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting (cont’d)

ExpensesDirectly IncurredDirectly incurred expenses are those costs the fund has primary responsibility andaccountability for, as reflected in the government’s budget documents.In addition to program operating expenses such as salaries, supplies, etc., directlyincurred expenses also include:• amortization of tangible capital assets;• pension costs, which comprise of the cost of employer contributions for currentservice of employees during the year; and• valuation adjustments which include changes in the valuation allowances used toreflect financial assets at their net recoverable or other appropriate value.Valuation adjustments also represent the change in management’s estimate offuture payments arising from obligations relating to vacation pay, guarantees andindemnities.Incurred by OthersServices contributed by other related entities in support of the fund’s operations arenot recognized but disclosed in Schedule 2.Grant ExpenseGrants are recognized as expenses when authorized, eligibility criteria, if any, are metby the recipients and a reasonable estimate of the amounts can be made.
Valuation of Financial Assets and LiabilitiesFair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transactionbetween knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable andother accrued liabilities are estimated to approximate their carrying values because ofthe short-term nature of these instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting (cont’d)

Financial AssetsFinancial assets are assets that could be used to discharge existing liabilities or financefuture operations and are not for consumption in the normal course of operations.Financial assets are financial claims, such as receivables from other organizations,employees and other individuals, as well as the below listed assets.Cash and cash equivalentsCash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-termhighly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash andthat are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents are held forthe purpose of meeting short-term commitments rather than for investment purposes.Accounts receivableAccounts receivable are recognized at the lower of cost or net recoverable value.  Avaluation allowance is recognized when recovery is uncertain.
LiabilitiesLiabilities are present obligations of the fund to external organizations and individualsarising from past transactions or events occurring before year end, the settlement ofwhich is expected to result in the future sacrifice of economic benefits. They arerecognized when there is an appropriate basis of measurement and management canreasonably estimate the amounts.
Non-Financial AssetsNon-financial assets are acquired, constructed, or developed assets that do notnormally provide resources to discharge existing liabilities, but instead:a) are normally employed to deliver government services;b) may be consumed in the normal course of operations; andc) are not for sale in the normal course of operations.Non-financial assets are limited to tangible capital assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting (cont’d)

Non-Financial Assets (cont’d)Tangible capital assetsTangible capital assets of the fund are recognized at cost less accumulated amortizationand amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimate useful lives of the assets. Thethreshold for capitalizing new systems development is $250,000 and the threshold formajor systems enhancements is $100,000.  The threshold for all other tangible capitalassets is $5,000.Amortization is only charged if the tangible capital asset is put into service.
Measurement Uncertainty(in thousands)Measurement uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized ordisclosed amount in the financial statements and another reasonably possible amount,whenever estimates are used.The areas subject to measurement uncertainty include:• Accounts receivable recognized as $30,265 (2019 - $32,535) excludes certainoutstanding federal statute surcharges and provincial statute fine surcharges thatare expected to be satisfied by means other than cash payment. The other meansinclude participation in the fine option program or time served in a correctionalinstitution at the option of the person owing the surcharge. Outstanding surchargesexpected to be satisfied by other means of $1,015 (2019 - $6,075) are based on theactual percentage satisfied in this manner from April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020and have been deducted from total outstanding surcharges. Changes in theproportion of surcharges satisfied by other means may have a material effect onfuture operating results.The provision for doubtful accounts reported as $1,194 (2019 - $1,205) in thesefinancial statements, is based on the actual percentage of surcharges written offfrom April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020.• Financial benefits program (Note 10) liabilities total $20,615 (2019 - $24,517) andinclude:

o financial benefits reported in the amount of $7,626 (2019 - $11,052);
o supplemental financial benefits in the amount of $9,099 (2019 - $9,057); and
o compensation claims in the amount of $3,890 (2019 - $4,408).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 3 FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGESThe Public Sector Accounting Board has approved the following accounting standards:• PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (effective April 1, 2021)This standard provides guidance on how to account for and report liabilities forretirement of tangible capital assets.• PS 3450 Financial Instruments (effective April 1, 2021)Adoption of this standard requires corresponding adoption of: PS 2601, ForeignCurrency Translation; PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation; and PS 3041,Portfolio Investments in the same fiscal period. These standards provide guidance on:recognition, measurement and disclosure of financial instruments; standards on howto account for and report transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency;general reporting principles and standards for the disclosure of information infinancial statements; and how to account for and report portfolio investments.• PS 3400 Revenue (effective April 1, 2022)This standard provides guidance on how to account for and report on revenue, andspecifically, addresses revenue arising from exchange transactions and unilateraltransactions.Management is currently assessing the impact of these standards on the financialstatements.
NOTE 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(in thousands)Cash and Cash Equivalents include deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment TrustFund (CCITF) of the Province of Alberta. The CCITF is managed with the objective ofproviding competitive interest income to depositors while maintaining appropriatesecurity and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio is comprised of high-quality,short-term securities with a maximum term to maturity of three years. As at March 31,2020, securities held by the fund have a time weighted return of 1.9% (2019 – 1.8%) perannum. Due to the short-term nature of CCITF investments, the carrying valueapproximates fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(in thousands)Accounts receivable are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENT ASSETS
(in thousands)Fine revenues are recognized at the point of conviction, which excludes certainoutstanding federal statute and provincial statute fines that are satisfied by means otherthan cash payment. At March 31, 2020, the estimate of contingent assets for fines revenueis $6,770 (2019 - $7,333).

NOTE 7 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
(in thousands)

2019

Gross
Amount

Fine Option
and Time
Served

Allowance
for Doubtful

Accounts

Net
Realizable

Value

Net
Realizable

Value
Government of Canada $ 1,940 $ - $ - $ 1,940 $ 2,287
Surcharge
   Provincial 26,479 761 1,106 24,612 24,306
   Federal 671 254 88 329 1,928
Other 3,384 - - 3,384 4,014

$ 32,474 $ 1,015 $ 1,194 $ 30,265 $ 32,535

2020

Grants to non-profit organizations $ 4,612 $ 3,929
Financial benefits program (Note 10) 20,615 24,517
Other program expenses 872 2,711

$ 26,099 $ 31,157

2020 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 8 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
(in thousands)

NOTE 9 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
(in thousands)Contractual obligations represent a legal obligation of the fund to others that will becomeliabilities in the future when the terms of those contracts or agreements are met.As at March 31, 2020, the fund has obligations under contracts and programs totaling$13,856 (2019 - $24,231).Estimated payment requirements for each of the next two years are as follows:
2020-21 $          11,106
2021-22            2,750

$          13,856

Obligations under Operating Leases, Contracts and Programs

Estimated Useful Life

Historical Cost
Beginning of year $ 868 $ 868
Additions - -
Disposals, Including Write-downs - -

868 868
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning of year 535 444
Amortization Expense 91 91
Effect of Disposals - -

626 535
Net Book Value at March 31, 2020 $ 242
Net Book Value at March 31, 2019 $ 333

2020 2019
Computer Hardware

and Software
3 -10 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 10 FINANCIAL BENEFITS PROGRAM
(in thousands)Financial BenefitsAs at March 31, 2020, there were one thousand five hundred ninety nine (2019 – onethousand four hundred thirty nine) active applications for financial benefits and nil (2019– two hundred twenty nine) action cases for class actions files.Financial Benefits liability of $7,626 (2019 - $11,052) is estimated based on historicaldecision patterns, average award values, and case progress at year end. Additionalinformation may be required to determine the amount for individual cases underregulations of the Victims of Crime Act.Supplemental BenefitsAs at March 31, 2020, twenty three (2019 – twenty three) eligible recipients received amonthly payment of $1,000 for supplemental benefits.Supplemental benefits liability of $9,099 (2019 - $9,057) is estimated using a projection ofmonthly payments and statistical life expectancy figures. In addition, a present-valuemethodology has also been applied in calculating this estimated liability. This methodologyprojects benefit cost streams into the future and discounts them to present-value using adiscount rate, which reflects the current return on assets used to fund the liability. Theinjuries of a recipient receiving a supplemental financial benefit must be reviewed every12 months to determine whether the severity of injuries is still in accordance withregulations under the Victims of Crime Act.Former Crimes Compensation BoardAs at March 31, 2020, twenty six (2019 – twenty seven) eligible recipients received amonthly payment for compensation claims assumed from the former CrimesCompensation Board.Compensation claims liability of $3,890 (2019 - $4,408) is estimated using a projection ofmonthly payments and statistical life expectancy figures. The same present-valuemethodology described above for supplemental benefits has been used to calculate thisestimated liability. The payments are subject to periodic review to confirm continuedeligibility for entitlements and/or adjustment to the monthly amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Victims of Crime Fund

March 31, 2020

NOTE 11 BENEFIT PLANS
(in thousands)The fund participates in the multi-employer pension plans: Management EmployeesPension Plan (MEPP), Public Service Pension Plan (PSPP) and Supplementary RetirementPlan for Public Service Managers (SRP).The fair value of the pension plans are subject to significant market volatility due to theeconomic crisis stemming from the global pandemic COVID-19 virus. To the extent that thepension plans may not recover market-losses during the remainder of 2020, the fundedstatus of the plans would experience a correlated decline. The financial market impact ofthe outbreak has been rapidly evolving, which precludes a reasonable estimate of theimpact.At December 31, 2019, the MEPP reported a surplus of $1,008,135 (2018 - surplus of$670,700), the PSPP reported a surplus of $2,759,320 (2018 - surplus of $519,218) and theSRP reported a deficiency of $44,698 (2018 - deficiency of $70,310).The fund also participates in two multi-employer Long Term Disability IncomeContinuance Plans. At March 31, 2020, the Bargaining Unit Plan reported a surplus of$63,707 (2019 – surplus $110,320) and the Management, Opted Out and Excluded Plan asurplus of $11,636 (2019 – surplus $24,642). The expense for these two plans is limited tothe employer’s annual contributions for the year.

NOTE 12 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTSThe deputy minister and the senior financial officer approved these financial statements.
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Expenses – Directly Incurred Detailed by Object Schedule 1
Victims of Crime Fund

Year ended March 31, 2020

2019
Budget Actual Actual

Salaries, wages and employee benefits 6,505$ 5,584$ 4,864$
Supplies and services 1,670 1,055 1,017
Grants 35,150 40,531 43,427
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 8) 69 91 91
Provision for financial benefits program - (3,903) (6,371)
Others - (11) (56)
Total Expenses 43,394$ 43,347$ 42,972$

2020

In thousands
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Allocated Costs Schedule 2
Victims of Crime Fund

Year ended March 31, 2020

1) Expenses – Directly Incurred as per Statement of Revenues and Expenses.
(2) Accommodation Costs, including grants in lieu of taxes, allocated by square meters.
(3) Legal Services Costs, allocated by estimated costs incurred by each program.

in thousands

2020 2019

Program

Financial Benefits $ 18,603 $ 122 $ - $ 18,725 $ 19,498
Assistance to Victims' Organizations 23,527 117 - 23,644 22,629
Criminal Injuries Review Board 427 84 - 511 488
Program Support Services 790 9 11 810 729

$ 43,347 $ 332 $ 11 $ 43,690 $ 43,344

Expenses - Incurred by Others
Total

ExpensesExpenses (1)
Accommodation

Costs(2)
Legal

Services(3)
Total

Expenses
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Related Party Transactions Schedule 3
Victims of Crime Fund

Year ended March 31, 2020Related parties are those entities consolidated or accounted for on the modified equity basis in theGovernment of Alberta’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Related parties also include keymanagement personnel in the fund and their close family members.The fund and its employees paid or collected certain taxes and fees set by regulation for premiums,licenses and other charges. These amounts were incurred in the normal course of business, reflectcharges applicable to all users, and have been excluded from this schedule.The fund had the following transactions with related parties reported on the Statement of Revenuesand Expenses and Statement of Financial Position at the amount of consideration agreed uponbetween the related parties:

The fund also had transactions with related parties for which no consideration was exchanged. Theamounts for these related party transactions are estimated based on the costs incurred by the serviceprovider to provide the service. These amounts are not reported in the financial statements, but aredisclosed in Schedule 2.

2020 2019 2020 2019

Expenses - Directly Incurred
Service Alberta -$ -$ 47$ 11$
Public Service Commission - - 3 2
Alberta Risk Management - - - 7

-$ -$ 50$ 20$

Payable to (100)$ -$

In thousands In thousands

Other EntitiesEntities in the Ministry
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Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Financial Statements
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Management’s Report

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards for all areas except trust assets under administration.  The
integrity and objectivity of these statements are management's responsibility.  Management is
also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the
financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls
to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.

The Public Trustee is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control and exercises these responsibilities through the Office of
the Public Guardian and Trustee.  The Public Trustee reviews external audited financial
statements annually.

The external auditor, Auditor General of Alberta, conducts an independent examination, in
accordance with Canadian auditing standards, and expresses their opinion on the financial
statements.  The external auditor has full and free access to financial management of the Office
of the Public Guardian and Trustee and meets when required.

On behalf of the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee,

[Original Signed By]

David Peace
Assistant Deputy Minister
Justice Services Division
Justice and Solicitor General

[Original Signed By]

Cheryl Fix
Public Trustee
Office of the Public Guardian &
Trustee
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General
Report on the Financial Statements

OpinionI have audited the financial statements of the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee, Estates andTrusts which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements ofoperations, remeasurement gains and losses, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year thenended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, thefinancial position of the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee, Estates and Trusts as at March 31,2020, and the results of its operations, its remeasurement gains and losses, its changes in net assets,and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies as described inNote 2 of the financial statements.
Basis for opinionI conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Myresponsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Office of the PublicGuardian and Trustee in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of thefinancial statements in Canada, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance withthese requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate toprovide a basis for my opinion.
Emphasis of matter - basis of accountingWithout modifying my opinion, I draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describesthe basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to account for assets held in trust underthe Public Trustee Act and Public Trustee Investment Regulation. As a result, the financial statementsmay not be suitable for another purpose.
Other informationManagement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises theinformation included in the 2019-20 Annual Report Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee, but doesnot include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The 2019-20 Annual Report
Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee is expected to be made available to me after the date of thisauditor’s report.My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express anyform of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the otherinformation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the otherinformation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in theaudit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.If, based on the work I will perform on this other information, I conclude that there is a materialmisstatement of this other information, I am required to communicate the matter to those chargedwith governance.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statementsManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements inaccordance with the accounting policies as described in Note 2 of the financial statements, and forsuch internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of thefinancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Office of thePublic Guardian and Trustee’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattersrelated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless an intention exists toliquidate or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Office of the Public Guardian andTrustee’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsMy objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wholeare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's reportthat includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatan audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will alwaysdetect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and areconsidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influencethe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, I exerciseprofessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due tofraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of notdetecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrideof internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee’s internal control.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountingestimates and related disclosures made by management.
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accountingand, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to eventsor conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee’sability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am requiredto draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the auditevidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions maycause the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee to cease to continue as a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including thedisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions andevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannedscope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that I identify during my audit.
[Original Signed By W. Doug Wylie FCPA, FCMA, ICD.D]Auditor GeneralJune 22, 2020Edmonton, Alberta
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Statement of Operations
Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedule are an integral part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Revenues
Pensions, Benefits and Settlements $ 121,545 $ 129,208
Interest and Dividends (Note 5) 12,686 12,418
Common Fund Realized Gains/(Losses) 2,038 (37)

136,269 141,589

Expenses
Client Care and Maintenance $ 83,341 $ 81,582
Administrative Fees (Note 12) 5,781 5,320
Management Fees 791 1,885
Transfer from Common Fund to Ministry of Justice (Note 12) 2,010 2,082

91,923 90,869

Annual Surplus $ 44,346 $ 50,720

(in thousands)
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Statement of Financial Position
Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

As at March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedule are an integral part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 7) $ 3,952 $ 8,211
Interest and Dividends Receivable 2,829 3,400
Common Fund Investments (Note 8) 512,980 513,529
Other Trust Assets Under Administration (Note 9) 136,774 139,882

656,535 665,022

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 10) 2,169 2,250
Clients' Accounts, Mortgages, and Loans Payable (Note 11) 52,167 51,569

54,336 53,819
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (158) 4,820

Net Financial Assets $ 602,357 $ 606,383

(in thousands)



Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

Clients' Equity
Accumulated

Surplus Total Clients' Equity
Accumulated

Surplus Total
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019

(in thousands) (in thousands)

Annual Surplus $ - $ 44,346 $ 44,346 $ - $ 50,720 $ 50,720

Allocated to Clients for Future Distribution
Interest from Common Fund Earnings

(Note 1d) 12,227 (12,227) - 11,315 (11,315) -
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures

(Note 6) 32,688 (32,688) - 42,660 (42,660) -
Trust Assets Acquired (Note 9b) 30,337 - 30,337 24,833 - 24,833
Assets released to Clients, Beneficiaries

and Heirs (29,146) - (29,146) (24,933) - (24,933)
Cash distributions to Clients, Beneficiaries

and Heirs (49,563) - (49,563) (48,902) - (48,902)

(3,457) (44,915) (48,372) 4,973 (53,975) (49,002)

Increase (Decrease) in Net
Financial Assets (3,457) (569) (4,026) 4,973 (3,255) 1,718

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 531,803 74,580 606,383 526,830 77,835 604,665

Net Assets at End of Year $ 528,346 $ 74,011 $ 602,357 $ 531,803 $ 74,580 $ 606,383

The accompanying notes and schedule are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019

Operating Transactions
Net Income $ 44,346 $ 50,720
Items not affecting cash:

Interest and Dividends from Clients' Investments outside of
Common Fund (265) (354)

Amortization of Premium and Discounts 2,134 2,874
46,215 53,240

Decrease (Increase) in Interest and Dividends Receivable 571 (115)
Decrease in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (81) (368)

490 (483)

Cash Provided by Operating Transactions 46,705 52,757

Capital Transactions
Acquisition of Trust Assets (3,561) (4,545)
Proceeds of Sale of Trust Assets 8,723 10,007
Cash Provided by Capital Transactions 5,162 5,462

Investing Transactions
Purchase of Portfolio Investments (238,558) (164,383)
Disposal of Portfolio Investments 231,995 156,506
Cash Applied to Investing Transactions (6,563) (7,877)

Financing Transactions
Distribution to Clients, Beneficiaries and Heirs (49,563) (48,902)

(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,259) 1,440

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 8,211 6,771

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 3,952 $ 8,211

The accompanying notes and schedule are an integral part of these financial statements.

(in thousands)
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Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses
Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes and schedule are an integral part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

Unrealized Gains (Losses) Attributable to:
Investments $ (5,687) $ 354
Foreign Exchange 1,335 849

Amounts Reclassified to the Statement of Operations
Investments (419) -
Foreign exchange (207) -

(Decrease) Increase in Net Financial Assets (4,978) 1,203
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains at Beginning of Year 4,820 3,617
Accumulated Remeasurement (Losses) Gains at End of
Year $ (158) $ 4,820

(in thousands)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSEOffice of The Public Trustee of Alberta (“Public Trustee”) was established in 1949 pursuantto the Public Trustee Act and now operates under the authority of the Public Trustee Act, SA2004, C.P. 44.1, (“the Act”) and other provincial statutes to protect the financial interests ofvulnerable Albertans by administering the estates of represented adults, decedents andminors. Effective April 1, 2014, the Office of the Public Trustee merged with the Office of thePublic Guardian creating the Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee (OPGT).The mandate of the Public Trustee is to:a) Administer the property and finances of adults who are incapable of managing theirfinancial affairs;b) Administer the estate of deceased persons;c) Protect property rights of children under eighteen years of age;d) Management of Common Fund.The Public Trustee Act Section 31(2) requires (with certain exceptions) that the moneyreceived by the Public Trustee for a client be paid into the Common Fund. Section 33(3)requires any amount paid into the Common Fund for a client under section 31(2) becredited to the client’s guaranteed account (Schedule 1) with the Public Trustee. Section31(4) of the Act states that no client or other person has any claim to or against theCommon Fund except as provided by section 33.  Section 33(6) states that the amountoutstanding on a client’s guaranteed account is a charge against the assets of the CommonFund and is unconditionally guaranteed by the Crown. Section 32(1) of the Act states thatassets may be transferred out of the Common Fund only as expressly required or permittedunder the Act.Section 32(2) allows funds to be transferred out of the Common Fund to pay the client, topay an expense or a liability of the client. Amounts transferred from the Common Fundunder section 32(2) are deducted from the client’s guaranteed account.Section 34 of the Act states that the Public Trustee, in accordance with the Public TrusteeInvestment Regulation (Regulation), sets the interest rate to be credited to client guaranteedaccounts.
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES

(a) Basis of Financial ReportingThe financial statements have been presented to report on Office of the Public Guardianand Trustee’s fiduciary responsibilities in respect of the administration of client trustsand estates and Common Fund as required under the Public Trustee Act and the PublicTrustee Investment Regulation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICE
(cont’d)

(a) Basis of Financial Reporting (cont’d)These financial statements reflect the operations of the Common Fund and the assetsheld in trust and activity for the estates and trusts administered by Office of the PublicGuardian and Trustee (OPGT).The operating costs of Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee are paid by the Ministryof Justice and Solicitor General. As such, the operating costs are not included in thesestatements and can be found in the financial statements of the Ministry.All balances except for other trust assets under administration have been prepared inaccordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. The accounting policiesfor other trust assets are described in Note 2(c).
(b) Common Fund InvestmentsCommon Fund investments consist of bonds, debentures, mortgages, asset backedsecurities, shares and Exchange Traded Funds (ETF). The carrying value of all financialinstruments included in the Common Fund is measured at cost or fair value. The longterm investments, except shares and ETF, are reported at amortized costs less any writedown associated with a loss in value that is other than a temporary decline. Discountsand premiums arising on the purchase of fixed income securities are amortized over theterm of the investment. Shares and ETF are stated at market value determined withreference to quoted market value.Short term investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value.Forward foreign currency contracts are held to protect the fund from foreign currencyexchange risk.  Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued based on fair value.Unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the statement of remeasurement gains andlosses.When a financial instrument is derecognized, the cumulative amount of theremeasurement gain or loss previously reported is reversed and the gain or loss on thedisposal of units held by the Common Fund is recognized in the statement of operations.Disclosure of the hierarchy of inputs used in the determination of fair value forinvestments is reported according to the following levels:(a) Level one: fair value is based on quoted prices in an active market.(b) Level two: fair value is based on model based valuations methods for which allsignificant assumptions are observable in the market or quoted pricesfor similar but not identical assets.(c) Level three: fair value is based on valuation methods where inputs that are basedon non observable market data have a significant impact on thevaluation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICE
(cont’d)

(b) Common Fund Investments (cont’d)

Reporting EntityThese financial statements reflect the assets and liabilities of the Common Fund andestates and trusts under the administration of the Public Guardian and Trustee ofAlberta. In addition, these financial statements reflect the annual changes in thoseassets and liabilities including:i) Revenues earned on behalf of clients;ii) Income received on behalf of clients;iii) New client account additions;iv) Released client withdrawals;v) Payment made on behalf of clients; andvi) Administration fees payable to the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General.The clients’ equity represents funds that are available for distribution to clients or theirbeneficiaries.
RevenuesRevenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred thatgave rise to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except whenthe accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when theirestimation is impracticable. Amount not received prior to the year end is reported asaccounts receivable. Purchase price premiums or discounts are amortized on a straightline basis over the remaining term of the investment. Realized gains and losses on thedisposition of Common Fund investments are recorded on the date of trade of thedisposal transaction.A portion of revenues generated by Common Fund investments are credited to clients’equity. Section 34 of the Act states that the Public Trustee shall set the interest rate foreach category of guaranteed accounts in accordance with the Regulation. The interest iscalculated on the minimum daily balance of each client’s account according to theRegulation and is credited to the client’s account monthly.  The interest rate as at March31, 2020 is 2.75% (2019 – 2.75%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICE
(cont’d)

(b) Common Fund Investments (cont’d)

ExpensesAll expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  The cost of all goodsconsumed and services received during the year are expensed. Transfers from theCommon Fund to the General Revenue Fund, investment management expenses relatedto the Common Fund investments, and assurance payments are recorded using theaccrual basis of accounting with amounts incurred in the fiscal year but not paid prior toyear end reflected as accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Administrative FeesPublic Trustee fees on all official guardian accounts are calculated and collected in themonth of the annual anniversary of the opening of the file.  Fees are accrued for theperiod from the anniversary date to the date of financial statements.Public Trustee fees for represented adult accounts are calculated and collected annuallyon the trust’s anniversary date. Fees are accrued for the period from the anniversarydate to the date of financial statements.Public Trustee fees on decedent accounts are not collected until the trust or account isdistributed. Fees are accrued from the period of the date the trust account was openeduntil the date of financial statements.In addition to the above stated administration fees the Public Trustee may, inaccordance with section 40(1)(a) of the Act, charge the client any fee that the PublicTrustee deems is reasonable for any service. Under section 40(1)(b), the Public Trusteeis entitled to collect from the client any expense reasonably incurred on the client’sbehalf.Administration fees paid by the clients to OPGT, with the exception of cost recoveries,are remitted to the Minister of Finance and are included in the revenues of the Ministryof Justice and Solicitor General.
Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash is comprised of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents areshort-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents areheld for the purpose of meeting short-term commitments rather than for investmentpurposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICE
(cont’d)

(c) Other Trust Assets Under AdministrationTrust assets under administration consist of accounts receivable, investments, realproperty and other assets that are held outside of the Common Fund.  Assets acquiredthrough new clients are recorded as direct increases to net assets and not as revenues.When assets are disposed of back to the beneficiary they are removed from net assetsand not recorded as an expense.
Accounts ReceivableAccounts receivable consist of mortgages, loans, external bank account balances prior tothe transfer to the Public Trustee, pension plan and other benefit and miscellaneousreceivables. The accounts receivable are recorded at their estimated fair value.
Clients’ Investments Outside of Common FundClients’ investments outside of Common Fund consists of retirement plans, registereddisability savings plans (RDSPs), guaranteed investment certificates and deposits,Government bonds, shares and other securities. These assets are valued at fair valuebased on the information available at the time OPGT assumes responsibility.On a go forward basis, the cost based approach for investments is considered mostappropriate as it is not practical to determine the investment market value. Due to thenumerous unique client investments the change in value is not easily measurable andnot actively managed by OPGT.
Structured Settlements and AnnuitiesStructured Settlements and Annuities are recorded at the present value of theirguaranteed term. If there is not a guaranteed term, the settlement or annuity isrecorded at a nominal value of $1.
Real PropertyReal property consisting of land and buildings are tangible capital assets and arerecorded at cost. The cost is considered to be the initially recorded fair value based onthe property tax assessments and other information at the time OPGT assumesresponsibility for the property.Amortization is not appropriate considering the properties are held as inventory.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(c) Other Trust Assets Under Administration (cont’d)

Other AssetsOther assets are stated at amounts determined from information available to OPGT atthe date the Trustee assumes responsibility of the assets. Subsequent adjustments aremade if additional valuation information is received. If no valuation is available, theseassets are recorded at a nominal value of $1.
Clients’ Accounts, Mortgages and Loans PayableClient accounts, mortgages and loans payable represent the administration fees payableto OPGT and the encumbrances of client assets that are payable to independent thirdparties. These client obligations are settled as client resources become available. Insome cases, a client’s liabilities exceed the stated value of their assets. These items areincluded as accounts payable when they have been verified by the creditor and are paidas the resources of the client become available.
LiabilitiesAll liabilities are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of assumption of theliability.The carrying value of all liabilities approximates their fair value.
Net AssetsNet assets represent the difference between the carrying value of assets held by OPGTand its liabilities.
Financial AssetsFinancial assets are assets that could be used to discharge existing liabilities or financefuture operations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ND REPORTING PRACTICES
(cont’d)

(c) Other Trust Assets Under Administration (cont’d)

Valuation of Financial Assets and LiabilitiesFair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transactionbetween knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, interest and dividends receivable, accountspayable, accrued liabilities and clients’ accounts are estimated to approximate theircarrying values because of the short term nature of these instruments. Fair values ofmortgages and loans payable are not reported due to there being no organized financialmarket for the instruments and it is not practicable within constraints of timeliness orcost to estimate the fair value with sufficient reliability.
NOTE 3 MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTYMeasurement uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized ordescribed amount and another reasonably possible amount. In particular, the fair value ofmany assets is estimated at the time that OPGT assumes the responsibility for the assets.Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates andassumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of thefinancial statements and the reported amounts revenues and expenses for the reportedperiod. Actual results could differ from management’s best estimates as additionalinformation becomes available in the future.
NOTE 4 BUDGETBudget amounts have not been disclosed as Public Guardian and Trustee's nature ofoperations does not provide for relevant budget amounts to be reasonably determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d) 

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts 

Year Ended March 31, 2020 

 
NOTE 5 INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS 
 
 

 2020 2019 
 (in thousands) 

Interest and Dividends - Common Fund Investments $             12,421 $           12,064 
Interest and Dividends from Clients' Investments outside of    
     Common Fund 

            
                    265 

                  
                  354 

Interest and Dividends $             12,686 $           12,418 
 

 
 
 
 
NOTE 6 EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES – ALLOCATED TO CLIENTS FOR FUTURE 

DISTRIBUTIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Interest and Dividends from Clients' Investments outside of
   Common Fund $ 265              $ 354              

Pensions, Benefits and Settlements 121,545        129,208        

Total Revenue 121,810        129,562        

Client Care and Maintenance 83,341         81,582         
Administrative Fees 5,781           5,320           

Total Expenses 89,122         86,902         
Excess of Revenues over Expenses - Allocated to Clients 
    for Future Distribution $ 32,688         $ 42,660         

2020 2019
(in thousands)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund (CCITF) isadministered by the Ministry of Treasury Board and Finance with the objective of providingcompetitive interest income to depositors while maintaining maximum security andliquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio comprises high quality short term and midterm fixed income securities with a maximum term to maturity of three years.  As at March31, 2020, securities held by the CCITF have a time weighted rate of return of 1.91 % perannum (2019 – 1.81% per annum).
NOTE 8 COMMON FUND INVESTMENTS

Fair Value HierarchyThe table below provides a summary of management’s estimate of the relative reliability ofdata or inputs used by OPGT to measure the fair value of OPGT’s investments. The measureof reliability is determined based on the following three levels:
Level One: Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identicalassets or liabilities traded in active markets. Level one includes primarily traded listedequity investments.

Operating Bank Accounts $ 1,873 $ 6,169
Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund (CCITF) 2,079 2,042

$ 3,952 $ 8,211

(in thousand)

2020 2019

Items at Cost or Amortized Cost
      Interest Bearing Securities $ 457,703 $ 462,644 $ 466,854 $ 469,577

Items at Fair Value
     Equities Listed in Active Markets 39,709 39,709 40,557 40,557
     Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,568 15,568 6,118 6,118

55,277 55,277 46,675 46,675

$ 512,980 $ 517,921 $ 513,529 $ 516,252

2019 2019
Cost Market Value

(in thousands) (in thousands)

2020 2020
Cost Market Value
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 8 COMMON FUND INVESTMENTS (cont’d)

Fair Value Hierarchy (cont’d)

Level Two: Fair value is based on valuation methods that make use of inputs, other thanquoted prices included within level one, that are observable by market participation eitherdirectly through quoted prices for similar but not identical assets or indirectly throughobservable market information used in valuation models. Level two primarily includes debtsecurities and derivative contracts not traded on a public exchange and public equities nottraded in an active market. For these investments, fair values are either derived from anumber of prices that are provided by independent pricing sources or from pricing modelsthat use observable market data such as swap curves and credit spread.
Level Three: Fair value is based on valuation methods where inputs that are based on nonobservable market data have a significant impact on the valuation. For these investmentstrading activity is infrequent and fair values are derived using valuation techniques.

Financial Risk ManagementOPGT is exposed to financial risks associated with the underlying securities held in theinvestment funds. These financial risks include credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.Credit risk relates to the possibility that a loss may occur from the failure of another partyto perform according to the terms of a contract. Market risk is comprised of currency risk,interest rate risk and price risk. Liquidity risk is the risk the Fund will not be able to meet itsobligations as they fall due.OPGT investments are managed in accordance with the Statement of Investment Policiesand Goals (SIP&G). The policy and goals are designed to mitigate risks by placingrestrictions on the overall content, quality and quantity of permitted investments. Pursuantto the policy and goals, the investments are high quality, highly rated fixed incomesecurities, equity investments in Canadian and foreign currency and mortgages.  Exposureto foreign currencies has provided diversification benefits.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands)

Equities Listed in Active Market $ 39,709 $ - $ - $ 39,709
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,568 - - 15,568
March 31, 2020 - Total $ 55,277 $ - $ - $ 55,277
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 8 COMMON FUND INVESTMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)OPGT works with an investment advisor and an investment manager that actively managesthe asset class allocations based on the policies and goals in the SIP&G. On a quarterly basis,the investment manager provides performance and compliance reports and meets with thePublic Guardian and Trustee, the investment advisor and the Investment AdvisoryCommittee.
a) Credit RiskCounterparty credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the failure of a counterparty tofully honour its financial obligations with OPGT. The credit quality of financial assets isgenerally assessed by reference to external credit ratings. Credit risk can also lead tolosses when issuers and debtors are downgraded by credit rating agencies usuallyleading to a fall in the fair value of the counterparty’s obligations. Credit risk exposurefor financial instruments is measured by the positive fair value of the contractualobligations with counterparties. The fair value of all investments is directly or indirectlyimpacted by credit risk to some degree. OPGT’s investments in debt securities are withcounterparties considered to be investment grade.
b) Foreign Currency RiskOPGT is exposed to foreign currency risk associated with 5.16% (March 31, 20195.16%) of the underlying securities held in the Common Fund investments. Foreigncurrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The fair value ofinvestments denominated in foreign currencies is translated into Canadian dollars usingthe reporting date exchange rate.
c) Interest Rate RiskOPGT is exposed to interest rate risk associated with the underlying interest bearingsecurities held in the investment funds. Interest rate risk relates to the possibility thatthe fair value of investments will change due to future fluctuations in market interestrates. In general, investment returns from bonds and mortgages are sensitive to changesin the level of interest rates, with longer term interest bearing securities being moresensitive to interest rate changes than shorter term bonds. If interest rates increased by1%, and all other variables are held constant, the potential loss in fair value to OPGTwould be approximately 2.40% (March 31, 2019 - 2.50%) of total investments.Nil (March 31, 2019 - nil) of interest bearing securities are invested with variableinterest rate with minimum interest rate risk exposure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 8 COMMON FUND INVESTMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

d) Price RiskPrice risk relates to the possibility that equity investments will change in fair value dueto future fluctuations in market prices caused by factors specific to an individual equityinvestment or other factors affecting all equities traded in the market. OPGT is exposedto price risk associated with the underlying equity investments held in investmentfunds. If equity market indices (S&P/TSX, S&P500, S&P1500 and MSCI ACWI and theirsectors) declined by 10%, and all other variables are held constant, the potential loss infair value to OPGT would be approximately 0.80% (March 31, 2019 - 0.80%) of totalinvestments.
e) Liquidity RiskLiquidity risk arises if OPGT should encounter difficulty in meeting obligationsassociated with its financial liabilities. Liquidity requirements of OPGT are met throughincome generated from investments, clients’ revenues and by investing in publiclytraded liquid assets traded in active market that are easily sold and converted to cash.These sources of cash are used to pay clients’ obligations, their operating expenses andsettle clients’ final payments associated with the termination of OPGT’s responsibilitiestowards clients.OPGT currently has minimal liquidity risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 9 OTHER TRUST ASSESTS UNDER ADMINISTRATION

NOTE 10 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2020 2019
(in thousands)

Transfer from Common Fund to Minister of Finance $ 2,010 $ 2,082
Accrued Investment Fees and Other Payable 159 168
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 2,169 $ 2,250

2020 2019

a) Trust Assets Under Administration
Accounts Receivable $ 9,530 $ 9,344
Real Property 17,527 22,092
Other Assets 2,830 3,220
Clients' Investments Outside the Common Fund 64,215 61,640
Annuities 42,672 43,586
Total Other Trust Assets Under Administration 136,774 139,882
Clients' Accounts, Mortgages, and Loans Payable (52,167) (51,569)
Other Trust Assets Under Administration 84,607 88,313
(Decrease) in Other Trust Assets Under
Administration, net $ (3,706) $ (5,208)

b) Trust Assets Acquired
Decrease in Other Trust Assets Under
Administration $ (3,706) $ (5,208)
Assets Released to Clients, Beneficiaries and
Heirs 29,146 24,933
Proceeds on Sale of Trust Assets 8,723 10,007
Acquisition of Trust Assets (3,561) (4,545)
Interest and Dividends from Clients' Investments
outside of Common Fund (265) (354)

Trust Assets Acquired $ 30,337 $ 24,833

(in thousands)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 11 CLIENTS' ACCOUNTS, MORTGAGES AND LOANS PAYABLE

The five year repayment schedule for mortgage and loans payable is not presented due tothe uncertainty in timing for the clients' account settlements.
NOTE 12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2020 2019
(in thousands)

Statement of Financial Position
Transfer from Common Fund to Ministry of Justice $ 2,010 $ 2,082
Administration Fees Payable 6,103 6,681

Statement of Operations
Administrative Fees $ 5,781 $ 5,320
Transfer from Common Fund to Ministry of Justice 2,010 2,082

Transfers to the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General consist of system developmentcosts to replace the legacy system and management fees that are remitted to the Minister ofFinance and are included in the revenues of the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General.Estate administration fees charged to clients' accounts, with the exception of costrecoveries, are remitted to the Minister of Justice and are included in the revenues of theMinistry of Justice and Solicitor General.The Public Trustee Act states that unclaimed property must be held for at least ten yearsfrom the date of an order declaring the person to be missing or after the date that the PublicTrustee publishes a notice in The Alberta Gazette.  After ten years of inactivity, trustbalances held by the OPGT may be transferred to the Ministry of Justice.  For the year endedMarch 31, 2020 the amount transferred was $364 (2019 - $240).  The amount appears onthe financial statements as part of the Cash Distributions to Clients, Beneficiaries and Heirs.

2020 2019
(in thousands)

Accounts Payable $ 42,098 $ 40,102
Administrative Fees Payable 6,103 6,681
Mortgage and Loans Payable 3,966 4,786

$ 52,167 $ 51,569



Financial Information

Justice and Solicitor General | Annual Report 2019–20 115

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)The operating costs of the Public Trustee portion of OPGT are included in the financialstatements of the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General. For the year ended March 31,2020, the operating costs were $14,633 (2019 - $15,104).
NOTE 13 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(in thousands)OPGT has been named in one (2019: one) claim of which the outcome is not determinable.The claim has a specified amount of $6,500 (2019: one claims with a specified amount of$6,500).  Included in the total claim, $3,250 (2019: one claim totaling to $3,250) is coveredin whole or in part by the Alberta Risk Management Fund. The resolution of indeterminableclaims may result in a liability, if any, that may be significantly lower than the claimedamount.
NOTE 14 CONTINGENT ASSETSThe OPGT has 56 (2019 - 50) claims on behalf of clients for which the outcome is notdeterminable.
NOTE15 FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGESThe Public Sector Accounting Board has approved the following accounting standards:• PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (effective April 1, 2021)Effective April 1, 2021, this standard provides guidance on how to account for andreport liabilities for retirement of tangible capital assets.  Management has assessedthat this standard is not applicable as the OPGT does not own any tangible capitalassets.• PS 3400 Revenue (effective April 1, 2022)This standard provides guidance on how to account for and revenue, and specifically, itaddresses revenue arising from exchange transactions and unilateral transactions. TheOPGT does not own any tangible capital assets. Management is currently assessing theimpact of this standard Estates and Trust Financial Statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2020

NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTSIn March 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic due to the novelcoronavirus (COVID 19). The situation is constantly evolving, and the measures put in placeare having multiple impacts on local, provincial, national and global economies.Management is closely monitoring the situation.  The overall effect of COVID 19 on theCommon Fund Investments will be accounted for when they are known and may beassessed.
NOTE 17 COMPARATIVE FIGURESCertain comparative figures have been reclassified, where necessary, to conform to thecurrent year's presentation.
NOTE 18 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTSThe Public Trustee and the Assistant Deputy Minister of Justice and Solicitor GeneralJustice Services Division approved these financial statements.
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Clients’ Guaranteed Accounts Schedule 1
Office of the Public Guardian and Trustee Estates and Trusts

As at March 31, 2020

Clients' Equity $ 528,346 $ 531,803
Clients' Accounts, Mortgages, and Loans Payable 52,167 51,569

Total Clients' Liabilities and Equity 580,513 583,372
Less: Other Trust Assets Under Administration 136,774 139,882

Clients' Guaranteed Accounts $ 443,739 $ 443,490

(in thousand)

2020 2019
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Other Financial InformationCertain disclosures (unaudited) required by legislation and regulations, and financial informationrelating to trust funds include the following where applicable:• Statement of Compromises and Write-offs [FAA S.23]• Civil Law Legal Services Delivery• Fine Activity Information
In addition to the above, other schedules (unaudited) that form part of this section include thefollowing and the presentation:• Statement of Credit or Recovery [FAA S.24(3)]• Lapse / Encumbrance [FAA S.28(5) and 28.1(4)]• Payments Based on Agreements [FAA Sec. 25(3)]
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Statement of Compromises and Write-off (unaudited)

Department of Justice and Solicitor General

For the year ended March 31, 2020
(in thousands)

The following Statement of Compromises and Write-offs has been prepared pursuant to Section 23 ofthe Financial Administration Act. The statement includes all compromises and write-offs that theMinistry of Justice and Solicitor General made or approved during the fiscal year.
2020 2019

Compromises:
Motor Vehicle Accident Recoveries $ - $ -

Write-offs:
Motor Vehicle Accident Recoveries $ 6,757 $ 3,149
Fines 4,927 5,140
Fines – Late Payment Penalty 2,240 2,204
Abandoned and Seized Vehicles 39 48
Maintenance Enforcement 302 448
Others - 1

$ 14,265 $ 10,990
Total Compromises and Write-offs $ 14,265 $ 10,990
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Civil Law Legal Services Delivery (unaudited)

Current and Prior Year Comparison

Staff Providing ServicesCivil Law provides legal and related strategic services to all government ministries. Civil Lawmaintains a time keeping system to enable its lawyers, paralegals and articling students to record andreport the hours of legal services provided in total to each ministry and their respective programs. In2019-20, 343 lawyers, paralegals and articling students recorded in excess of 328,392 hours ofprovided legal services and in 2018-19, 336 such staff recorded more than 316,000 hours. The totalhours of service to each Ministry is used as the basis to allocate legal services costs.
Cost of Legal ServicesThe costing methodology to estimate the costs for providing legal services for allocation to all clientministries includes the total cost of Civil Law less expenditures on contracted services and grants tothird parties. A proportionate amount for support services provided by Corporate Support Servicesare included in the estimate. The estimate includes accommodation costs for office space ingovernment owned or leased buildings as paid by and reported by the Ministry of Infrastructure andalso includes all or part of salary and benefit costs for lawyers paid directly by client ministries. Theestimated costs are allocated to each ministry based on the hours of service received. The Ministry ofJustice and Solicitor General, as a service provider, sends the legal services cost information to eachministry for disclosure in the Related Party Transactions Schedule and the Allocated Costs Schedule tothe Financial Statements of each ministry’s annual report.
Current and Prior Year ComparisonThe table below summarizes the estimated cost of allocated legal services, the number of hoursallocated and the average hourly cost.

Cost Estimates 2019-20 2018-19

Total Civil Law Costs $ 52,596,485 $ 51,234,609
Deduct: Contract Services, Grants, and Amortization 696,138 862,525

$ 51,900,348 $ 50,372,084
Add: Support Services 775,548 706,505

Accommodation 2,677,941 2,609,799
Client Cost for Lawyers 3,733,990 3,498,640

Total Legal Services Costs for Allocation $ 59,087,827 $ 57,187,028

Number of Hours of Service Provided 328,392 316,100

Average Hourly Cost $ 179.93 $ 180.91



Other Financial Information

Justice and Solicitor General | Annual Report 2019–20 121

Fine Activity Information (unaudited)

Federal and Provincial Statute Offences and Municipal Bylaw OffencesA management information report summarizes fine activity by the recipients entitled to the fine orpenalty revenue. The municipalities receive specific provincial statute offence fines and all municipalbylaw fines for offences occurring within municipal boundaries. The majority of municipal fine activityoccurs in cities, towns, counties and municipal districts. The Alberta government receives fine revenuefor provincial statute offences occurring on primary highways and other specific provincial statuteoffences. The Alberta government receives any late payment penalties on overdue fines and somefines under the Criminal Code of Canada and retains 26 2/3 percent of Traffic Safety Act fines. TheVictims of Crime Fund receives a 15 percent surcharge on all provincial statute fines and a 30 per centsurcharge on selected federal statute offences. These surcharge revenues are used to fund victimsprograms in Alberta. The federal government receives fine revenue for federal statute offences andselected fines under the Criminal Code.The tables below summarize fines payments for the twelve months from April 2019 to March 2020and for the twelve months from April 2018 to March 2019 by the recipient level of government.
Fine Payments – April 2019 to March 2020

Recipient
Number of

Fine Payments
Dollar Value of
Fine Payments

Percent of Total
Dollar Value

Municipalities 2,022,575 $ 199,772,192 51.8%
Alberta Government 230,025 37,990,786 9.8%
Victims of Crime Fund Note 41,923,487 10.9%
Federal Government 713 1,325,515 0.3%
Late Payment Penalty 1,039,851 31,417,511 8.1%
Fine Retention Note 73,548,565 19.1%

Total 3,293,164 $ 385,978,056 100.0%

Fine Payments – April 2018 to March 2019

Recipient
Number of

Fine Payments
Dollar Value of
Fine Payments

Percent of Total
Dollar Value

Municipalities 2,063,399 $ 203,009,594 51.8%
Alberta Government 235,526 37,782,326 9.6%
Victims of Crime Fund Note 43,366,284 11.1%
Federal Government 992 3,341,744 0.9%
Late Payment Penalty 1,019,902 31,211,445 8.0%
Fine Retention Note 73,325,681 18.7%

Total 3,319,819 $ 392,037,074 100.0%

Note: The Number of Fine Payments for Victims of Crime Fund and Fine Retention have beenaccounted for in the other recipient categories.
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Statement of Credit or Recovery (unaudited)

Department of Justice and Solicitor General

For the year ended March 31, 2020

The following has been prepared pursuant to Section 24(3) of the Financial Administration Act.

(1) The revenue of each credit or recovery is included in the Statement of Revenues andExpenses.(2) Maintenance Enforcement revenues represent deterrent penalties and service fees topromote timely payment of maintenance to improve and expand services available forclients.(3) Provincial Civil Claims revenues represent funding from fees levied to commence action inexcess of seven thousand five hundred dollars in Provincial Court. These revenues arededicated towards the costs of processing these claims.(4) Edmonton Regional Airport Authority revenues are received on a full cost recovery basisfrom the Edmonton Regional Airport Authority for policing services provided to theEdmonton International Airport under the Provincial Police Service Agreement.(5) Shortfall is deducted from current year’s authorized spending.

Authorized

 Actual
Revenue

Recognized

 Total
Revenue
Received/

Receivable

Maintenance Enforcement
 (2)

$ 7,170 $ 6,994 $ 6,994 $ (176)
Provincial Civil Claims

 (3)
1,200 1,333 1,333 133

Edmonton Regional Airport Authority
(4)

3,700 3,963 3,963 263
$ 12,070 $ 12,290 $ 12,290 $ 220

(1)

2020

In thousands

(Shortfall)/
Excess (5)
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Lapse/Encumbrance (unaudited)

Department of Justice and Solicitor General

For the year ended March 31, 2020

The following has been prepared pursuant to Section 24(4) of the Financial Administration Act.
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Lapse/Encumbrance (unaudited) – Cont’d

Department of Justice and Solicitor General

For the year ended March 31, 2020

(1) As per “Expense Vote by Program”, “Capital Investment Vote by Program” and “FinancialTransaction Vote by Program” page 149-151 of 2019-20 Government Estimates on October 24,2019.(2) Adjustments include encumbrances, capital carry forward amounts, transfers between votes andcredit or recovery increases approved by Treasury Board and credit or recovery shortfalls. Anencumbrance is incurred when, on a vote-by-vote basis, the total of actual disbursements in theprior year exceed the total adjusted estimate. All calculated encumbrances from the prior yearare reflected as an adjustment to reduce the corresponding voted estimate in the current year.(3) Actuals exclude non-voted amounts such as amortization and valuation adjustments.
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Payments Based on Agreements

Department of Justice and Solicitor General

For the year ended March 31, 2020
(in thousands)The Department has entered into agreements to deliver programs and services that are fully fundedby the Government of Northwest Territories (GNWT), the Government of Nunavut (GN), theGovernment of Saskatchewan (GS), the Government of Canada (GC), the Government of BritishColumbia (GBC), and the Government of Yukon Territory (Yukon). Costs based on these agreementsare incurred by the Department under authority in Section 25 of the Financial Administration Act.Accounts Receivable includes $29 (2019 - $25) from the GNWT, $8 (2019 - $19) from the GN, $8 (2019- $4) from the GS, $0 (2019- $3) from the GBC, $155 (2019 - $92) from the GC and $85 (2019 -$38)from Yukon relating to payments based on agreements.The agreements with the GNWT, the GN, the GS and GBC are for services provided by the MedicalExaminer’s Office. Services include examination of remains, medico-legal autopsy, toxicology analysis,and expert testimony in court or at a coroner’s inquest.The agreement with the GC is for enhanced French language training in order to prepare AlbertaProvincial Court judges to sit on the Itinerant Francophone Provincial Court Bench.The agreement with the Yukon is for the purpose of conducting investigations of Serious Incidentsrespecting members of the Territorial Police Service.Amounts paid and payable based on agreements with program sponsors are as follows:

The Department has also entered into an agreement to disburse the provincial share of net forfeituresfrom proceeds of crime on behalf of the Department of Justice Canada (Justice Canada). Proceedsreceived from Justice Canada under this agreement are in accordance with Section 10 of the Federal
Seized Property Management Act resulting from the investigation efforts by law enforcement agenciesin Alberta.Disbursements to law enforcement agencies and crime and drug prevention organizations based onthis agreement are made by the Department under authority in Section 25 of the Financial
Administration Act. Only the amounts received from Justice Canada and not disbursed are reflected inthese financial statements. For the year ended March 31, 2020, amounts payable to law enforcementagencies and crime and drug prevention organizations under this agreement are $611 (2019 - $2,818)and are reflected in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Annual Report Extracts and Other Statutory ReportsThe Criminal Code requires the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General to report annually on thefollowing parts of the Act.
Criminal Code s.83.31 – Anti-Terrorism ActSection 83.31 of the Criminal Code requires the Attorney General of Alberta to publish an annualreport on the operation of those parts of the Act dealing with investigative hearings and recognizancewith conditions.This constitutes the annual report of the Attorney General of Alberta covering the period fromDecember 24, 2018 to December 24, 2019.
I. Report on the Operation of sections 83.28 and 83.29(Investigative Hearing)The Attorney General of Alberta reports that there were no applications initiated under thesesections of the Criminal Code. As such, there is no data to report in relation to the reportingrequirements under paragraphs 83.31(1)(a) to (c) of the Criminal Code.

II. Report on the Operation of Section 83.3(Recognizance with Conditions)The Attorney General of Alberta reports that there were no cases initiated under this section ofthe Criminal Code. As such, there is no data to report in relation to the reporting requirements inparagraphs 83.31(2)(a) to (f) of the Criminal Code.

Criminal Code s.83.3 (3) – Anti-Terrorism ActIn accordance with subsection 83.3(4) of the Criminal Code, a peace officer who suspects, onreasonable grounds, that the detention of a person is necessary to prevent a terrorist activity, mayarrest the person without a warrant.Pursuant to subsection 83.31(3) of the Criminal Code, the minister responsible for policing in everyprovince shall publish or otherwise make available to the public an annual report for the previous yearon the operation of subsection 83.3 of the Criminal Code that includes:• The number of arrests without warrant that were made under subsection 83.3(4) and theperiod of the arrested person’s detention in custody in each case; and• The number of cases in which a person was arrested without warrant under subsection83.3(4) and was released.
Information has been received from all police services in Alberta indicating that no arrests were madeunder this subsection in the previous year; therefore, the report for 2019 is zero.
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Criminal Code s.25.3 – Organized Crime and Law Enforcement – DesignationsSection 25.3 of the Criminal Code provides a limited justification for otherwise illegal acts andomissions by law enforcement officers, and others acting at their discretion. An essential condition isthat it can apply only to officers designated by a competent authority. In the case of municipal policeservices, the Minister of Justice and Solicitor General is the competent authority.The competent authority is responsible for publishing an annual report on the designations andauthorizations provided under subsections 24.1 to 25.4 of the Criminal Code. This report shall includeinformation on the amount and nature of the acts or omissions committed by those officers designatedunder this legislation.Alberta began designating officers under this legislation in March 2003. The designations for January 1to December 31, 2019 include:• Number of times that acts and omissions were committed: 2• Nature of conduct being investigated: Homicide• Nature of act or omission: Property damage under $5000; Theft under $5000; False Pretenceor False Statement, Sec 362(1)(c)(ii) CCC Public Interest Disclosure Act

Public Interest Disclosure (Whistleblower Protection) ActSection 32 of the Public Disclosure (Whistleblower Protection) Act requires the chief officer of adepartment to report annually on all disclosures made to the designated officer of the department,public entity or office of the Legislature for which the chief officer is responsible.This constitutes the annual report of the chief officer of the department covering the period of April 1,2018 to March 31, 2019.Chief Officer Report as at March 31, 2020In relation to the reporting requirements under section 32 of the Public Interest Disclosure
(Whistleblower Protection) Act, designations for April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 include:• Number of disclosures of wrongdoing: two• Number of investigations and reports submitted: one• Number of wrongdoings identified: one

○ The wrongdoing in this file related to Sections 3(1)(c) and 3(1)(d), “gross mismanagementof public funds and knowingly directing or counseling an individual to commit awrongdoing”. The specific wrongdoings cited by the disclosure involved some meal claimsbeing made in contravention of GoA and Departmental Travel, Meal and HospitalityExpense policy.
○ The recommendations included that the department work with Treasury Board andFinance to clarify the intent of both the GoA policy and the Justice and Solicitor General(JSG) policy. Another recommendation was for the department to either amend their policydocument to conform to the current practice, or, alternately keep the wording as is andenforce the policy.
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○ In response to the recommendation, the department has consulted internally and withTreasury Board and Finance concerning the intent of the JSG and GoA travel and relatedpolicy. The department’s policy was found to align with the GoA policy intent and simplyrequires more rigorous enforcement. The department has developed a plan to address theinconsistent application of the JSG Travel and Related Expenses Policy, which they arefinalizing and will be implement over the coming year.
○ Departmental compliance sampling of meals claims over the past year has only identified afew instances of non-compliant meal claims and these have been addressed with theindividuals involved. Furthermore, a year over year comparison of travel meal expensesfor Traffic Sheriffs Operations shows a 14 percent decrease which is attributed to stricterand more consistent adherence to the travel, meal and hospitality policy.
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